
Visit the Township's Web Site www.twp.ferguson.pa.us  and sign up for Notify Me! to receive email notices about 
Township Information 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
7:00 PM 

SWEARING IN OF APPOINTED OFFICIAL 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. CITIZENS INPUT

III. SPECIAL REPORTS

Schlow Centre Region Library – Ms. Susan Werner

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. February 4, 2019, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. Public Hearing Resolution authorizing Chairman & Secretary to execute agreement with UAJA and
Greenbriar Property Owners Association

2. Public Hearing modifying Resolution 2012-11 approving Liquor License Transfer to Giant Food
Stores

3. Public Hearing Resolution approving Settlement offer for Condemnation of Property at Owens Drive
4. Discussion on Plastic Bag Ban/Impact Fee Ordinance

VI. NEW BUSINESS

1. Consent Agenda
2. Zoning Variance for 3062 Ernest Lane – SCBWA proposed Nixon-Kocher Water Treatment Facility
3. Public Hearing Resolution adopting Amended Purchasing & Procurement Policy
4. Public Hearing Resolution repealing 2014-04 and authorizing Chair & Secretary as signatories on

various accounts with JSSB
5. Citizen’s Right to be Heard – Proclamation Request
6. Authorizing Public Hearing on 2018 Operating Budget Amendments
7. Discussion of commercial property assessed Clean Energy Legislation & Zoning Ordinance

Amendment
8. Board Member Request – Kathy Matason Letter of Support

VII. REPORTS

1. COG Committee Reports
2. Staff Reports

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

IX. CALENDAR ITEMS – FEBRUARY/MARCH

1. Zoning and SALDO Ordinances, Zoning Map / Idea Board Open House,
Ferguson Township Main Meeting Room, February 21, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 

2. Northland Mobility Study Open House, Ferguson Township, March 11, 2019, 5:00 p.m.
3. Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan, St. Paul Lutheran Church, March 13, 2019, 6:00 p.m.

X. ADJOURNMENT



Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
7:00 p.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. CITIZENS INPUT

III. SPECIAL REPORTS

1. SCHLOW CENTRE REGION LIBRARY – Ms. Susan Werner. 10 minutes 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. February 4, 2019, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

1. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE
COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE
AN AGREEMENT WITH THE UNIVERSITY AREA JOINT AUTHORITY AND THE GREENBRIAR
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION AS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”.

10 minutes 

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of a resolution advertised for public hearing authorizing the Chairman 
and Secretary to execute an agreement with the University Area Joint Authority (UAJA) and the 
Greenbriar Homeowners Association.  The agreement permits UAJA to open cut streets in Greenbriar 
including Deerfield Drive, Tara Circle, Sleepy Hollow Drive, Apple Green Circle, and Woodberry Circle 
as requested by the Highway Occupancy Permit application.  This is in response to concerns from staff 
and the Board that the project will structurally degrade the roads quickly enough so as to require they 
be repaved earlier than would otherwise be warranted. By executing the agreement, UAJA agrees 
finance the cost of repaving the roads in Greenbriar, with the exception of Sleepy Hollow Drive, in the 
year the Township’s assessment methodology shows the roads meet warrants.  A baseline assessment 
of the conditions of the roads will be used to determine when they are predicted to need repaving under 
normal degradation conditions.  The Township will reimburse UAJA the principal amount of the cost of 
repaving in that year.  The Township Manager will review the terms of the agreement in further detail.  If 
the Board adopts the resolution.  It will be forwarded to UAJA and representatives of the Greenbriar 
Homeowners Association for their concurrence.  A Highway Occupancy Permit will be issued by the 
Township that allows UAJA to proceed with their design once all parties are in agreement. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Chairman 
and Secretary to execute an agreement with the University Area Joint Authority and the Greenbriar 
Homeowners Association as described in Exhibit “A” of the resolution. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.   

SWEARING IN OF APPOINTED OFFICIAL



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
Page 2 

2. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE
COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA MODIFYING RESOLUTION 2012-11 BY AMENDING CONDITION
6(C) OF THE APPROVAL OF THE LIQUOR LICENSE TRANSFER FROM POTTER TOWNSHIP,
CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA TO FERGUSON TOWNSHIP, CENTRE COUNTY,
PENNSYLVANIA REQUESTED BY GIANT FOOD STORES, LLC.   5 minutes

Narrative 
On February 4th, the Board of Supervisors authorized advertisement of a resolution for public hearing 
amending the condition attached to the approved liquor license transfer requested by Giant Food Stores, 
LLC.  The condition being modified requires that Giant maintain a ratio of 1-to-1 of onsite prepared food 
sales to alcohol sales, and that quarterly reports be filed with the Township verifying the store’s 
compliance with this requirement.  Specifically, the modification being made will amend the condition to 
obligate the applicant to submit reports to the Township annually, rather than quarterly. The restriction 
on food-to-alcohol sales, commonly referred to as the “Pizza Hut Rule,” will still be applicable.  Also 
provided with the agenda is a copy of the letter received from attorneys of the firm Flaherty & O’Hara 
representing Giant Food Stores, LLC, requesting the modification. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution modifying resolution 2012-
11 by amending condition 6(c) of the approval of the liquor license transfer requested by Giant Food 
Stores, LLC. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.   

3. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE
COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA APPROVING A SETTLEMENT OFFER TO PAULA WHITE FOR THE
CONDEMNATION OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON OWENS DRIVE AND IDENTIFIED AS TAX
PARCEL 24-019-073E AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE
A SETTLEMENT AGREEEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”.

10 minutes 
Narrative 
On December 14, 2015, the Board of Supervisors adopted a resolution authorizing a declaration of 
taking of the property located on Centre County tax parcel 24-019-073E, now commonly referred to as 
Songbird Sanctuary, as authorized by the Eminent Domain Code.  The former property owners, Mr. and 
Mrs. Stephen White, subsequently filed a preliminary objection to the amount of just compensation 
offered for the property ($240,000).  Upon commencing with a public hearing by an appointed Board of 
View, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors expressed a desire to arrive at an agreeable 
settlement amount.  Ultimately, that amount was determined to be $504,000, which includes the fee 
simple conveyance of the property to the Township, as well as the amount the condemnee is entitled to 
under the Eminent Domain Code for legal and appraisal services. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution approving an offer of 
settlement to Stephen and Paula White for the condemnation of property identified as tax parcel 24-019-
073E. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.   

4. DISCUSSION OF PLASTIC BAG BAN/IMPACT FEE ORDINANCE 10 minutes 

Narrative 
On November 19, 2018, the Board of Supervisors conducted a public hearing in accordance with Section 
9.03 of the Home Rule Charter on a petition that was submitted requested the Township implement a 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
Page 3 

ban on single use plastic bags.  At the hearing, the Board directed staff to research similar ordinances 
that have been adopted in Pennsylvania and identify and potential legal challenges that have resulted.  

In October 2018, the Borough of Narberth became the first municipality to regulate the distribution of 
plastic bags and straws in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Provided with the agenda is a copy of 
the ordinance that was adopted by Narberth Borough Council.  The Township Manager had a discussion 
with a Narberth Borough Councilwoman who largely championed the regulation, and several potential 
concerns were identified.  If the Board is interested in moving forward with drafting an ordinance, it is 
the Manager’s recommendation that any discussion of potential regulations is preceded by a concerted 
community engagement campaign designed to seek feedback from stakeholders including business 
owners, residents, and the disabled community.  After input is received, a more focused discussion on 
appropriate regulations may take place.  

VI. NEW BUSINESS

1. CONSENT AGENDA 5 minutes 

a. Voucher Report – January 2019

2. ZONING APPEALS/REQUESTS FOR VARIANCE

a. 3062 ERNEST LANE - STATE COLLEGE BOROUGH WATER AUTHORITY PROPOSED
NIXON-KOCHER WATER TREATMENT FACILITY    5 minutes

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of the Variance Request Application received from Gwin, Dobson & 
Foreman, on behalf of the State College Borough Water Authority, for property located at 3062 Ernest 
Lane.  The applicants are seeking variances from the Riparian Buffer Overlay under Chapter 27, Section 
213.4, Floodplain Conservation under Chapter 27, Sections 801.1., 801.1.C, 801.H. and 801.I.  The 
applicants are also requesting variances from Lot Requirements under Chapter 27, Section 205.1.A. 
and Nonconforming Uses and Structures under Chapter 27, Section 903.  The applicant currently 
operates the Nixon Wellfield on T. P. #24-003-,007F,0000- that contains three well buildings.   The 
SCBWA opts to acquire approximately 2.98 acres of land owned by Gary & Carol Myers in order to 
develop a new Water Treatment Facility to treat water from both the Nixon and Kocher Wellfields.  The 
Water Treatment Facility will be located outside the designated Zone A and Riparian Buffer, however, 
the driveway section from Ernest Lane will be developed within Zone A and Riparian Buffer. The 
proposed facility will also be located outside of the Sourcewater Protection Zone I Radii for all three 
existing well buildings.  Also, the Myers property, T.P #24-003-,007K,0000- is a Nonconforming Lot 
totaling 44.9 acres and will potentially decrease in size by 2.98 acres, continuing the lot size 
nonconformity.  The subject properties are located within the Rural Agricultural (RA) zoning district. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the variances requested for 
3062 Ernest Lane by the State College Borough Water Authority. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors remain neutral on the request for variances.  

3. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE
COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA ADOPTING AN AMENDED PURCHASING AND PROCUREMENT
POLICY.           5 minutes

Narrative 
In certain areas, the Second-Class Township Code governs Township policy where the Home Rule 
Charter is silent or is preempted by state law.  One of these areas relates to purchasing guidelines that 
govern spending by Township departments. Provided with the agenda is a redlined revised purchasing 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
Page 4 

policy and resolution which has been advertised for public hearing.  One of the main differences is related 
to the limits for department head approvals and the related limits requiring formal purchase orders. 
Currently, a formal purchase order is required for a purchase of $1,000 or more.  The revised guideline 
would increase the limit to $2,500 per purchase.  Reasoning for changing the limit is as follows:  
 

1. The $1,000 limit was put in place over a decade ago when the Township budget was half the 
size of the current budget; 

2. Increasing the limit decreases the number of purchase orders and related tasks saving time and 
money; 

3. Increasing the limit removed the requirement for the front-line staff to secure the Township 
Manager's approval for purchases between $1,000 and $2,499.00; 

4. Increasing the limit will limit the number of purchases the Manager has to review, focusing efforts 
on more costly and arguably bigger purchases; and 

5. The $2,500 requirement mirrors the Township’s current definition of a capital item. 
 

The Township is also providing an allowance for blanket purchase orders.  Generally, a blanket purchase 
order is a commitment to buy goods or services for a set amount from a specific vendor.  By using 
blanket purchase orders, the vendor can plan their operations knowing what the township is committing 
to pay.  The Township benefits by reduced paperwork by not having to prepare multiple requisitions and 
purchase orders. 
 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution adopting an amended 
purchasing and procurement policy. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.   
 
4. A PUBLIC HEARING ON A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE 

COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA REPEALING RESOLUTION 2014-04 AND AUTHORIZING THE 
CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A RESOLUTION WITH JERSEY SHORE STATE 
BANK, VOYA FINANCIAL ADVISORS, AND PERSHING, LLC DESIGNATING THE 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES ON THE TOWSNHIP’S VARIOUS BANK ACCOUNTS. 
            5 minutes 

 

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a copy of a resolution as advertised for public hearing authorizing the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman, and Township Manager to act as signatories on the various Township bank 
accounts held by Jersey Shore State Bank.  The Township’s Administrative Code provides for two 
signatures on certain checks and drafts whose amounts exceed $3,000.  For many expenditures, the 
Township utilized ACH (Account Clearing House) transfers but also issues semi-monthly checks for 
goods and services received where two signatures are required.  
 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Chairman 
and Secretary to execute a resolution with Jersey Shore State Bank designating the authorized 
signatories on the Township’s various bank accounts. 
 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution.  

 
5. CITIZEN’S RIGHT TO BE HEARD – PROCLAMATION REQUEST   5 minutes 
 

Narrative 
Mr. Todd Giddings of Beaver Branch Road submitted a request under Section 2.20 of the Ferguson 
Township Home Rule Charter, Citizen’s Right to be Heard.  Specifically, Mr. Giddings is requesting the 
Board adopt the attached proclamation designating the week of March 10th as Groundwater Awareness 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
Page 5 

Week in Ferguson Township.  This request would coincide with National Groundwater Awareness Week.  
If the Board is interested in proceeding, a proclamation can be prepared and placed on the March 4th 
Regular Meeting agenda for consideration. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct staff to prepare a proclamation for the 
March 4th Regular Meeting designating the week of March 10th to be Groundwater Awareness Week in 
Ferguson Township. 

6. AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 2018 OPERATING BUDGET AMENDMENTS
10 minutes 

Narrative 
Provided with the agenda is a draft resolution amending the Ferguson Township Annual Operating 
Budgets for fiscal year 2018.  In accordance with Section 7.08 of the Ferguson Township Home Rule 
Charter, the Board of Supervisors may schedule a public hearing to amend the budget after it is adopted, 
provided that it is scheduled within two weeks of announcement of the hearing.  The resolution amending 
the 2018 Operating Budget includes increasing the Hydrant Fund, which has exceeded budget 
expenditures.  No amendments are needed to the 2019 Operating Budget to reflect encumbered 
expenditures. The Township has sufficient reserves to cover the additional expenditures in the 2018 
fiscal year.  

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize the public hearing to amend the 2018 
Ferguson Township Annual Operating Budget for March 4, 2019. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors authorize the public hearing.  

7. DISCUSSION OF COMMERCIAL PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (C-PACE)
LEGISLATION AND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT   20 minutes

Narrative 
In 2018, Governor Tom Wolf signed into law a bill that enabled Pennsylvania municipalities to establish 
clean energy districts.  The program, labeled C-PACE, provides a mechanism for businesses and 
industry to finance environmental efficiency improvements such as renewable energy systems, improved 
insulation, HVAC upgrades, and more.  The financing of the upgrades is done by lending institutions, 
who are in turn repaid throughout the life of the building via an added assessment to the building’s 
property tax bill. This additional assessment is transferred as the property is sold. In order to incorporate 
C-PACE into the Township’s zoning ordinance, staff should be directed to further research this legislation
and how it should manifest itself within local regulations.  Additional consideration and discussion should
be given to which zoning districts would be appropriate for this program and how it would be
administered. Provided with the agenda is a fact sheet that further explains the program and legislation.

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors direct the Township Manager to write a letter of 
support to the Centre County Commissioners endorsing the passage of C-PACE legislation. 

Staff Recommendation 
That the Board of Supervisors direct the Township Manager to write a letter of support for the county 
adoption of C-PACE legislation. 

8. BOARD MEMBER REQUEST – KATHY MATASON LETTER OF SUPPORT 10 minutes 

Narrative 
The letter of support from Ferguson Township for Ms. Matason comes from concerns voiced by regional 
staff, elected officials, and members of the public.  Recently, Chairman Buckland was alerted to social 
media posts made by a Ferguson Township supervisor that disparaged Ms. Matason.  These posts were 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 
Page 6 

not in the spirit of good faith or the will of the Board.  The Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
wishes to: 

 Engage in good-faith dialogue;
 Cooperate with our peer governmental bodies to accomplish common goals even when we

disagree;
 Work to advance policy for the common good; and
 Recognize that the Council of Governments unanimously approved a conduct policy by

resolution.

It seems appropriate that the Board recognize that Ms. Matason has conducted meetings in good faith, 
in a spirit of cooperation, advanced policies for the common good, and conducted herself well.  Her work 
on and for the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority meets the Ferguson Township Strategic 
Plan Goal #9 – Partnerships and Regional Thinking.  Therefore, the Board is asked to move to advance 
this letter of support recognizing Ms. Matason’s service.  Provided with the agenda is a copy of the letter 
as drafted by Chairman Buckland. 

Recommended motion:  That the Board of Supervisors authorize a letter of support for Ms. Kathy 
Matason in recognition of her service to the Centre Region Parks and Recreation Authority. 

15 minutes 

15 minutes 

VII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Ad Hoc Facilities Committee
b. Human Resources Committee
c. Joint Finance & PSE Committees
d. Executive Committee

2. STAFF REPO RTS

a. Township Manager
b. Planning and Zoning Director
c. Public Works Director
d. Chief of Police

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

IX.      CALENDAR ITEMS – FEBRUARY/MARCH

1. Zoning and SALDO Ordinances, Zoning Map / Idea Board Open House,  
         Ferguson Township Main Meeting Room, February 21, 2019, 6:00 p.m.  

2. Northland Mobility Study Open House, Ferguson Township, March 11, 2019, 5:00 p.m.

3. Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan, St. Paul Lutheran Church, March 13, 2019, 6:00 p.m.

X. ADJOURNMENT



FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, February 4, 2019 
7:00 PM 

I. ATTENDANCE

The Board of Supervisors held its first regular meeting of the month on Monday,
February 4, 2019, at the Ferguson Township Municipal Building.  In attendance were:

Board: Peter Buckland 
Steve Miller 
Laura Dininni 
Tony Ricciardi 

Staff: Dave Pribulka, Township Manager 
Chris Albright, Chief of Police 

Others in attendance included:  Faith Norris, Recording Secretary; Suzy Yetter, Kevin Abbey, Clearwater 
Conservancy; Wes Glebe; Eric Reisher; Jeremie Thompson; Chris Bradley; Joe Green, Township 
Solicitor; Ellen Freeman; Charima Young. 

II. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Buckland called the Monday, February 4, 2019, regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

III. CITIZENS INPUT

a. Mr. Glebe voiced his concerns on a couple of issues:  1)  Rails to Trails and whether it should go under
Parks & Recreation, and 2) Benner Township’s ongoing issue with bio solids and PFAS chemicals
and if Ferguson Township has something in place to address these issues.  Following discussion, a
follow-up will be done.

b. Mr. Bradley voiced his concern regarding the Borough’s transfer facility trucks that travel on West
Beaver Avenue that is in a residential street vs using the commercial street that is one block away.
This is in addition to dump trucks traveling the street being used for the elementary school project.
The speeding hazards along with residue left from the trucks is an issue.  Mr. Buckland noted a follow-
up will be done.

IV. SPECIAL REPORTS

a. Clearwater Conservancy.  Ms. Suzy Yetter, Conservation Projects Coordinator.
The presentation included an overview of the local landscape and the Scotia Barrens young forest,
habitats and biological resources.  The discussion focused on steering changes in a positive direction
for area habitats through forest management.  Noted are upcoming informational sessions that will
provide how to topics to create a sustainable young forest habitat environment.

Discussion followed on topics that included habitat preservation, partnering in forest management and
sharing of useful resources among other similar organizations.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Ricciardi moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Regular Meeting minutes of January 21,
2019.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a. Discussion on Draft Amendments to Zoning and SALDO Ordinances

Mr. Pribulka reviewed the two draft ordinances for discussion along with the public hearing process.



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors  
Monday, February 4, 2019 
Page 2 

 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the major changes to the ordinances in response to Mr. Buckland’s request.  
The Board followed with a discussion on a number of items relating to the ordinances.  Noted are 
that the Tree Commission comments were not provided with the draft.  Mr. Buckland requested that 
C-PACE legislation be added to a future agenda.  A follow-up will be done with the Planning 
Commission on the Tree Commission comments. 
 
Mr. Pribulka did a review of follow-up items for the Board.   

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a. CONSENT AGENDA 

1. 2019-C13 Award Memo – Street Trees 
2. Board Member Request – Kathy Matason letter of Support 

 
Ms. Dininni motioned to pull item 2 off the Consent Agenda.   
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Consent Agenda.    Mr. Miller seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Discussion followed on item 2 – Board Member Request.  Ms. Dininni requested a narrative be 
provided for the letter of support.  Following discussion a motion was made. 
 
Mr. Miller moved that the Board of Supervisors place the Board member requested item on the agenda 
for February 19th.  Mr. Ricciardi seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
b. Public Hearing Resolution Authorizing Agreements with Thistlewood Homeowners Association 

 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the draft resolution, exhibits and map for discussion as provided with the 
agenda.  Mr. Green was in attendance to answer legal questions. 
 
No comments noted at this Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution authorizing the Chairman to 
execute the Article of Agreement with the Thistlewood Homeowners Association and the Easement & 
Right of Way Agreement with the Grantors and Thistlewood Homeowners Association.  Mr. Ricciardi 
seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion followed on code and the plan review process.  Further discussion followed on future street 
tree planting and maintenance for conservation areas. 
 
Roll Call vote on Resolution 2019-06:  Mr. Ricciardi – YES; Mr. Buckland – YES; Ms. Dininni – YES; 
Mr. Miller – YES. 
 

c. Request to Modify Conditions of Liquor License Transfer with Giant Food Stores - 255 Northland Center 
 
Mr. Pribulka reviewed the request and the “Pizza Hut” rule.  Ellen Freeman representing Flagerty & 
O’Hara was in attendance to answer questions. 
 
Mr. Glebe was recognized and spoke on concern for yearly reporting versus quarterly reporting being 
done currently and if there were any inconsistencies in regards to collection of data.  Prior to 
discussion, a motion was made. 
 



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors  
Monday, February 4, 2019 
Page 3 

Ms. Dininni moved that the Board of Supervisors direct staff to advertise for public hearing a resolution 
amending Resolution 2012-11 by modifying Condition 6(c) to require an annual report be filed with the 
Township in place of quarterly reports.  Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 
 
Following discussion with the Board, Staff and Solicitor, it was determined that there have been no 
inconsistencies or irregularity in reporting in the past regarding this applicant. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

e. Comments on Phase 2 Spring Creek Watershed Management Plan 
 
Mr. Buckland reviewed the plan as provided with the agenda prior to the discussion. 
 
Mr. Ricciardi moved that the Board of Supervisors request Mr. Buckland forward its comments on the 
Phase II Spring Creek Watershed Management Plan to the Spring Creek Watershed Commission.  
Mr. Miller seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion followed on the plan and action steps.  Comments from the Board included:  define 
economic and biological growth; more defined objectives; design of structure; is the plan 
implementable and achievable; funding for Phase 3; update recommendations vs technical 
categories; policy recommendations; and justification and guidance for a model ordinance. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

f. Appointments to Centre Region Building and Housing Board of appeals 
 
Mr. Pribulka presented the appointments for consideration. 
 
 Core Board 

o Adam Fernsler, P.E., LEED AP 
o J. Michael Leakey, R.A. (Alternate) 

 Property Maintenance Board 
o Sarah K. Lowe 

 
 
Mr. Ricciardi moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the slate of nominations as forwarded 
by the COG General Forum for re-appointment to the Centre Region Building and Housing Board 
of Appeals for a three-year term beginning February 15, 2019.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

g. PennPrime Loss Control Standard #1 – Commitment to Safety/Risk Management 
 

Mr. Pribulka reviewed the Loss Control Standard that is an annual Township requirement.  The only 
noted change from the previous year was the date. 

 
Mr. Ricciardi moved that the Board of Supervisors approve the Township’s Statement of Commitment 
to Safety and Risk Management.  Ms. Dininni seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
VIII. STAFF AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
a. COG COMMITTEE REPORTS                

1. Executive Committee.  Mr. Miller noted the agenda was provided and everything was covered prior 
to the last COG meeting. 

  



Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors  
Monday, February 4, 2019 
Page 4 

 
b. OTHER REGIONAL COMMITTEES  

1.  Centre Area Cable Consortium.  Mr. Ricciardi reported the meeting was held on January 22nd on 
reappointments to the Board and an executive session. 
 

c. STAFF REPORTS       

1. Township Manager.  Mr. Pribulka reported on preparation for the upcoming citizens’ survey being 
done by the National Research Center that will include Pine Grove Mills subsection at no additional 
cost; UAJA agreement update on the Greenbriar development-details to follow at the next Board 
meeting if approved to go before the Board; CRPRA meeting update on playground safety audits; 
and pre-application meeting update with Stahl Shaeffer on the land development plan. 
 
Discussion followed on details of the citizens’ survey, playground inspections and winter 
maintenance plans. 
 

2. Planning and Zoning Director.  The report was provided with the agenda packet. 
 

3. Public Works Director.  No written report. 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD - None 

X. CALENDAR ITEMS 

a. A special meeting of the Board will be held tomorrow that will not be an executive session.   
Discussion followed on the rules for executive sessions. 

 
b. Meeting rescheduled:  Centre Region Comprehensive Recreation, Parks and Open Space Plan 

Public Meeting, State College Area High School, Wednesday, February 6th, 7:00 p.m. 
 

c. Meeting rescheduled:  Musser Gap conversation, Unitarian Universalist Fellowship, February 7th, 
6:00 p.m. 
 

d. Pine Grove Mills Small Area Plan, February 13, 2019, 6:00 p.m., place TBD 
 

e. Zoning and SALDO Ordinances, Zoning Map / Idea Board Open House, Ferguson Township Main 
Meeting Room, February 21, 2019, 6:00 p.m. 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Buckland called for adjournment.  With no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors,         
Ms. Dininni motioned to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
David Pribulka, Township Manager 
For the Board of Supervisors 
 

 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO.__________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH 
THE UNIVERSITY AREA JOINT AUTHORITY AND THE GREENBRIAR HOMEOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION AS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”. 

  
WHEREAS, the University Area Joint Authority (UAJA) is desirous of constructing a 

pressurized sanitary sewer system to service the homes located in the Greenbriar 
Development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Right-of-Way Administrator has expressed concern 

that the number of pave cuts proposed by the design will significantly degrade the structural 
integrity of the public right-of-way, likely resulting in an earlier repaving timetable for impacted 
streets; and 

 
WHEREAS, UAJA maintains that other methodologies such as directional boring to 

reduce the number of pave cuts are not feasible for the design needed to construct the sewer 
system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township recognizes the environmental and public health value of 

connecting homes serviced by on-lot septic systems to the sanitary sewer system. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors, being desirous of 

arriving at a mutually-agreeable resolution that permits the project to proceed while 
simultaneously protects the interests of the Township, hereby authorizes the Chairman and 
Secretary to execute the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part of this 
Resolution. 

 
RESOLVED this 19th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

 
 
 
       By:________________________________ 
             Peter Buckland, Chairman 
                  Board of Supervisors 
 
 
                        [ S E A L ] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 

David Pribulka, Secretary 



 

 

Exhibit “A” 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made this ____ day of ___________, 2019, by and between: 

 

 TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, a Home Rule Municipality, having offices at 3147 Research Drive, 

State College, Centre County, Pennsylvania, party of the first part, hereinafter referred to as “Township”; 

– AND – 

 UNIVERSITY AREA JOINT AUTHORITY, a municipal authority organized under the Municipal 

Authorities Act, having offices at 1576 Spring Valley Road, State College, Centre County, Pennsylvania, 

party of the second part, hereinafter referred to as “Authority”; 

– AND – 

 GREENBRIAR HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., at 2526 Tara Circle, State College, 

Pennsylvania party of the third part, hereinafter referred to as “Association”. 

 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, Authority is desirous of connecting the Greenbriar development to its sanitary sewer 

collection and treatment system; and 

 WHEREAS, Authority has requested permission from the Township to occupy, open-cut, and 

restore public right-of-way on streets identified as Deerfield Drive, Sleepy Hollow Drive, Tara Circle, 

Woodberry Circle, and Apple Green Circle as further described and illustrated in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and made part of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), hereinafter referred to as “Project”; and 

 WHEREAS, Authority has applied for a Highway Occupancy Permit as required by Chapter 21, 

Streets and Sidewalks, Part 1, Pave Cut and Right-of-Way Occupancy, Section C, Permits of the Ferguson 

Township Code of Ordinances; and 

 WHEREAS, Township is entrusted to ensure the structural integrity of the public right-of-way by 

ensuring that streets are properly maintained and restored by all utilities granted permission to occupy 

them. 



 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, Authority and Township, in consideration of mutual covenants, promises, 

conditions, and terms to be kept and performed, do hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1. Authority will be issued a Highway Occupancy Permit by Township to perform the 

requested pave cuts, temporary restoration, and permanent restoration as described in Exhibit “A”. 

Section 2. Authority agrees to comply with all conditions set forth in the Highway Occupancy Permit 

as well as those applicable provisions set forth in Chapter 21, Streets and Sidewalks, Part 1, Pave Cut and 

Right-of-Way Occupancy, Section D Construction Procedures. 

Section 3. Township agrees to remove the typical condition that utilities directional bore under the 

right-of-way for similar projects and permit Authority to open cut and temporarily and permanently restore 

said cuts in accordance with Township standards. 

Section 4. Township shall apply condition indexes measured most recently as of April 2018 at streets 

affected by Project to degradation curves established by its PAVER™ Pavement Management Software 

and project for each street the year(s) each will be required to be repaved. Streets subjected to this 

assessment will include Deerfield Drive, Tara Circle, Apple Green Circle, and Woodberry Circle. Sleepy 

Hollow Drive is purposefully excluded from this MOA because the road is currently identified for repaving 

in the scope of the Township’s 2019 – 2023 Capital Improvement Program. Authority shall be given the 

opportunity to review and concur with the assessments and projected repaving schedule for each of the 

affected streets. 

Section 5. Township shall measure and determine condition indexes for each street affected by 

Project, excluding Sleepy Hollow Drive, at the conclusion of the guarantee period of the permanent 

restoration as established by §21-139 Permanent Restoration (two years). The measured condition indexes 

shall be applied to the same degradation curves that were applied prior to Project commencing and the 

projected year for repaving of each street shall be again determined. Other utility work or other factors 

outside of normally expected degradation of a street that may have adversely affected the condition of the 

streets during the guarantee period shall be noted as part of the reassessment of the condition indexes. 

Said utility work or other factors shall be deducted from Authority’s obligation under the terms of this MOA 

in a manner that is agreeable to Township and Authority. Authority shall be given the opportunity to review 

and concur with the assessments and projected repaving schedule for each of the affected streets. 



 

 

Section 6. Should the projected repaving year for each street subject to this MOA be earlier than 

would otherwise have been required had Project not commenced, Authority agrees to fully finance the 

repaving of each street in the earlier year. This year will be agreed to by Authority and Township, including 

any amount to be deducted as a result of other utility work or factors that may have caused the streets to 

degrade more rapidly than normally expected. Township agrees to repay Authority the full cost of the 

principal of the repaving project in the year the streets would normally have been repaved. Authority agrees 

to absorb any interest or other costs associated with financing the project. 

Section 7. Upon request of Township, Authority agrees to perform any maintenance work including 

crack sealing on the affected streets that can reasonably be assumed to have been necessitated as a 

consequence of the Project. 

Section 8. Township agrees to reevaluate the streets affected by Project in the projected earlier 

repaving year and determine whether each street is in need of repaving. If not, Authority shall not be 

required to finance the repaving of the streets in that year but shall be required to finance the repaving of 

streets in the year it is determined the streets are required to be repaved, provided that year is earlier than 

the original projected year of repaving prior to Project commencing. 

Section 9. Should any or all of the affected streets be determined to not require repaving earlier than 

the initial projected year as a result of Project, Authority shall be absolved of its responsibilities under this 

MOA. 

Section 10. By entering this MOA as a party, Association agrees with the provisions outlined herein. 

Section 11. Arbitration. Disagreements between the Parties of this MOA shall be addressed in a timely 

manner and in good faith. Should the Parties be unable to resolve any disagreements, a neutral arbitrator 

shall be selected by concurrence of the Parties to negotiate an agreeable resolution. 

Section 12. Termination. This MOA may be terminated upon the mutual agreement and consent of 

Authority and Township. Authority or Township shall be able to terminate this MOA upon securing 

agreement from the other Party. Association shall not be entitled to terminate this MOA. 

 

 

 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereunto have set their hands and seals the date and year first written 

above. 

 

 

ATTEST:       TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 
____________________________    By: ____________________________ 
David Pribulka, Township Secretary          Peter Buckland, Chairman 
              Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                 UNIVERSITY AREA JOINT AUTHORITY 
 
 
____________________________    By: ____________________________ 
Cory Miller, Executive Director           David Lapinski, Chairman 
              University Area Joint Authority 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      GREENBRIAR PROPERTY OWNERS 

     ASSOCIATION  
 
 

____________________________    By: ____________________________ 
              Authorized Representative 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  __________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
MODIFYING RESOLUTION 2012-11 BY AMENDING CONDITION 6(C) OF THE APPROVAL OF THE 
LIQUOR LICENSE TRANSFER FROM POTTER TOWNSHIP, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA TO 
FERGUSON TOWNSHIP, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA REQUESTED BY GIANT FOOD 
STORES, LLC. 

WHEREAS, Section 461 of the Pennsylvania Liquor Code (47 P.S. 4-461, hereinafter "Code"), as 
amended, authorizes, among other things, the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board (hereinafter "PLCB") to 
approve the transfer of liquor licenses across municipal boundaries within the same county and under 
certain conditions to issue restaurant liquor license without regard to quota restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, Ferguson Township adopted Ordinance 773 dated May 7, 2001 as amended setting 
forth the criteria for an inter-municipal transfer of liquor licenses, and  

WHEREAS, Resolution 2012-11 was adopted after the conducting of public hearings on May 7, 
2012 and May 21, 2012 in accordance Section 461 of the Code and Ordinance 773 of the Code of 
Ordinances to approve the intermunicipal liquor license transfer requested by Giant Food Stores; and 

WHEREAS, Giant Food Stores has demonstrated consistent compliance with the conditions applied 
to the approval of the liquor license transfer, and has further requested that the requirement to submit 
quarterly reports verifying compliance with the requirement to maintain a ratio of 1 to 1 food-to-liquor and/or 
malted or brewed beverage sales be amended to require annual reporting. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of the Township of Ferguson, 
Centre County, Pennsylvania hereby amends Resolution 2012-11 by amending Condition 6(c) as follows: 

6. The Board, following public hearings on May 7, 2012 and May 21, 2012 establishes the following
conditions to be made a part of the liquor license transfer that may be issued by the Pennsylvania
Liquor Control Board:

c. Onsite prepared food sales to liquor and/or Malted or Brewed Beverage sales ratio of 1 to 1
(50% food- 50% liquor and/or Malted or Brewed Beverage or alcohol on a dollar basis, i.e.
applicant shall be in compliance with the Liquor Code “Pizza Hut Rule,” 47 P.S. Section 4-
493(14)) shall be required to be maintained on a yearly basis with reports filed with the Township
during the first two year renewal period and each two year renewal period thereafter. Reports to
the Township will be on a percentage basis. For purposes of compliance monitoring by the
Liquor Control Enforcement applicant shall keep an income/expense ledger showing the actual
dollar volume of food and liquor sales on a monthly basis.

RESOLVED this 19th day of February, 2019. 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

_______________________________________ 
By: Peter Buckland, Chairman 

     [ S E  A L ] 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
       David Pribulka, Secretary 



RESOLUTION NO.__________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
APPROVING A SETTLEMENT OFFER TO PAULA WHITE FOR THE CONDEMNATION OF 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON OWENS DRIVE AND IDENTIFIED AS TAX PARCEL 24-019-073E 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A SETTLEMENT 
AGREEEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”. 
  

WHEREAS, Ferguson Township (hereafter referred to as “Condemnor”) filed a 
Declaration of Taking with respect to a tract of land situated on Owens Drive and identified by 
Centre County Tax Parcel 24-019-073E; and 

 
WHEREAS, On or about November 29, 2016, having received no preliminary objections 

to the filing by Stephen and Paula White (hereafter referred to as “Condemnee”), Condemnor 
paid into court a sum of $240,000.00 for said tract of land; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 8, 2018, the Condemnor and Condemnee proceeded to a 

view and hearing before a Board of Viewers; and 
 
WHEREAS, a settlement of just compensation has since been agreed to by the 

Condemnor and Condemnee for said tract of land. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors hereby approves the 

additional just compensation amount of $260,000.00 which, when added to the previously paid 
just compensation amount, generates a total agreed upon just compensation settlement figure 
of $500,000.00 which includes any applicable interest or delay damages. In addition, payment 
of the statutory reimbursement for legal counsel and expert fees in the amount of $4,000.00 is 
being made which results in a total additional payment of $264,000.00 for purposes of 
settlement. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors hereby 

authorizes the Chairman and Secretary to execute the Settlement Agreement attached hereto 
as Exhibit “A” and made part of this Resolution. 

 
RESOLVED this 19th day of February, 2019. 

 
TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

 
 
 
       By:________________________________ 
             Peter Buckland, Chairman 
                  Board of Supervisors 
 
                        [ S E A L ] 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
David Pribulka, Secretary 



dpribulka
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"

dpribulka
Typewritten Text

















































































































































































RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
ADOPTING AN AMENDED PURCHASING AND PROCUREMENT POLICY. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors and staff are directly responsible for the oversight 
and management of public funds and the provision of public services as established in the 
Ferguson Township Home Rule Charter and Administrative Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors and staff are committed to executing this 
responsibility in an ethical, open, and honest manner while reducing the likelihood of 
mismanagement of public funds and fraud; and 

WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Purchasing Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, 
provides guidance and control of purchasing functions of the Township and its staff. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors 
adopts the Ferguson Township Purchasing Policy attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made part 
of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 19th Day of February, 2019 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 

By:_______________________________ 
      Peter Buckland, Chairman 

  [ S E A L ] 

ATTEST: 

By:__________________________________ 
David Pribulka, Secretary 



Exhibit “A” 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
PURCHASING POLICY 

Page 1 of 4 

 
 

Policy Number:  Effective Date: 2005 

Policy Name: Purchasing Policy Last Revision Date: 2019 

Classification Group: Accounting Sub Classification Group Purchasing 

 
 

SCOPE & PURPOSE 
To provide guidance and control of purchasing for the staff of Ferguson Township. 
 

Levels of Authority and Responsibility. 
 

• Board of Supervisors – Approval required for purchases over $3,000 

• Township Manager - Purchases up to the amount the board authorizes can be made by the 
Township Manager.  Purchases up to $ 2,999.99 can be authorized by the Township 
Manager.  Purchases above this amount require Board authorization. 

• Department Manager – Purchases up to $2,499.99 per item can be authorized by the 
Department Manager. 

• Individual Employee All purchases by individual employees must be approved by the 
Department Manager in advance. 

 
Home Rule Limits 

The Township is a home rule entity.  As such, quotes and bidding limits are determined in accordance 
with the home rule criteria as stated in ordinance Number 918, dated March 2, 2009. 
 

Davis Bacon Act 
When using Federal money for construction projects, wage rates and record-keeping procedures 
established by the Davis-Bacon Act must be followed. 
 

Prevailing Wage Act 
For public works projects in excess of specific amount are subject to the Pennsylvania Prevailing 
Wage Act requires specifications to contain a provision for the payment of the prevailing minimum 
wage to all workers on the project.  
 

Motor Vehicles 
Under the Motor Vehicle Procurement Act, public bodies, including municipalities, are required to 
purchase or lease only motor vehicles manufactured or assembled in North America. 
 

Exemptions 
Some items greater than or equal to $25,000 are explicitly exempted from the competitive bidding 
process.  They include: 

• Maintenance, Repairs or replacements for water, electric, or other public works. 

• Work performed by municipal employees 

• Where items are specific and patented or copyrighted. 



Exhibit “A” 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
PURCHASING POLICY 

Page 2 of 4 

• Insurance 

• Intergovernmental contracts 

• Personal or Professional Services 

• Real Estate 

• Emergency purchases 
 
These items under $25,000 may not be subject to a formal Purchase Order.  They still require 
Manager and Board of Supervisor approval and budgeted authority however.  
 

State Contracts 
Any item listed on the PA State Contract list may be purchased without formal bid procedure normally 
required.  This is because the State has already done the bidding process.  COSTARS is a similar 
state program that allows local purchases to piggyback. 
 
The Local Piggyback Purchasing Program (L3P) is a second option available to eligible organizations 
through an annual subscription with the PA Municipal League. 
 
The Commonwealth procurement statue provides for a sweeping authority for local government to 
engage in cooperative purchasing.  Local government may enter into a cooperative purchasing 
agreement with another Pennsylvania public procurement entity or external procurement unit. 
 

Bidding Requirements 

• All bids requests must be advertised in advance, typically in the local newspaper of general 
circulation and include certain information such as date, time and local of bid opening.  
Township officials are subject to a penalty for evading the advertising requirements of 10% of 
the full amount of the contract and a misdemeanor of the third degree. 

• All contracts or purchases in excess of $25,000 unless exempted, must be made from the 
lowest responsible bidder.  Piece-mealing purchases are also subject to this penalty. 

• The award of contracts must only be made by public announcement at the meeting at which 
the bids are received or at a subsequent meeting, the time and place of which must be 
publicly announced when the bids are received or published with 5 days’ notice for 
Townships of the second class. 

• The Municipality can reject any or all bids with good reason. 
 

Leases 
Leases qualify as contracts under this policy and require the same authorization as other purchases.  
However, State purchasing regulations generally do not apply with the exception of lease-purchases. 
 

Fraud and Conflicts of Interest 

• No public official or public employee can enter into a contract valued at $500 or more with their 
government body unless the contract is awarded through a public process. 

• Any public official or employee with a personal interest cannot have any supervisory 
responsibility for administering the contract. 

• To fall within the prohibition, the interest of an official must be certain, pecuniary, or proprietary 
and direct.  Sentimental or general interest is not enough. 

 
Kickbacks, Gifts, Gratuities, Personal Purchases 



Exhibit “A” 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
PURCHASING POLICY 

Page 3 of 4 

Township employees may not accept money, goods or services from vendors, including kickbacks or 
rebates, in exchange for any form of commitment, promise or favor related to that vendor or the 
vendor’s related parties.  In addition, any money, goods or services in excess of a de minimis amount 
is considered Township property and will be treated as such. 
 
Employees may not use Township funds or other property for personal use unless specifically 
authorized by the Township Manager or Board of Supervisors. 
 

Purchases and Budgets 
Purchases will only be allowed in accordance with the approved budgets or by special authorization 
by the Board of Supervisors or Township Manager.  Without proper purchasing authority, purchases 
cannot be made.  This is also true with the timing of purchases.  Purchases can only be made within 
the time scope of the approved budget.  Items not purchased within the budget time line may have an 
encumbrance reserved for that item only with the Township Managers and the Board of Supervisors 
approval. 
 

Approved Vendors 
The Township will maintain a list of Approved Vendors.  Vendors will be approved for use by the 
Accounting Department and verified as valid ongoing independent concerns.  Any company or 
vendors with a conflict of interest to the Township will not be approved.  In most cases, local current 
vendors will be given priority when making purchases.  
 

Purchasing Cards, Credit Cards and Electronic Payments 
The Township makes use of electronic purchases on a regular basis.  The payment methods consist 
mainly of PLGIT purchasing cards.  The Township sells old equipment via eBay and maintains a small 
balance in PayPal for routine office supply purchases.  The purchasing cards are covered by a 
separate policy. 
 
Any payments made via the Internet will be in a secured form only.  When a vendor does not provide 
a secured form of payment, the purchase will be made via telephone or some other form. 
 

Requisitions & Purchase Orders 
Generally, all purchases, are required to have a Purchase Requisition completed and approved prior 
to making the purchase.  This can be done verbally by the department head as long as the requisition 
is signed within a reasonable time.  Without proper authorization, the purchaser is making an 
unauthorized purchase with Township funds.  Any unauthorized purchases may be deemed the 
personal responsibility of the purchaser. 
 
All purchases exceeding $2,499.99 require a formal Purchase Order signed by the department head 
and Township Manager.  Purchase Orders are generally sent to the vendor to inform them of the 
intent to purchase.  Contract documentation may take the place of a purchase order in certain 
circumstances. 
Purchase requisitions are completed and signed according to authorization needed.  Once approved, 
the items should be ordered by the department or person completing the requisition.  The requisition 
is then forwarded with supporting documentation to the finance department toi match up with the 
invoices. 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
PURCHASING POLICY 

Page 4 of 4 

No purchases will be made that conflict with Township Policies or conflict with the independence of 
the Township and its employees or any employee directly involved with the purchases and the 
interests of the Vendor. 
 
The purchase order is laser form created by the software.  A copy is generally sent to the Vendor as 
authorization for the purchase.  A second copy is sent to the Accounting Department.  A third copy is 
provided to the purchaser. 
 
The Township may use blanket purchase orders.    In certain circumstances blanket purchase orders 
streamline the purchasing process for commonly purchased items using one vendor.  The Township 
Manager must approve the use of a blanket PO. 
 

Changes/Cancellations/Credits 
Any changes, cancellations or credits to the purchase will be forwarded to the Accounting department 
as soon as possible.   Any increase in purchases will follow the same guidelines as a new purchase. 
 

Delivery and Authorization. 
The purchaser is responsible for inspecting and accepting the item upon delivery.  If the item is 
damaged, of the wrong type or amount, this must be noted at delivery time.  Depending on the 
severity of this, the delivery can be rejected or not authorized.  If rejected, redelivery should be 
scheduled and the Accounting department notified. 
 
A key piece of information is the packing slips that come with the items.  Almost all items delivered will 
have a packing slip attached.  This packing slip will be forwarded to the Accountant for processing in a 
timely manner.  If no packing slip is available, please notify the accounting department verbally or in 
writing that the items were received and accepted.  Without notice of receiving the item, the payment 
to the vendor will be delayed. 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
REPEALING RESOLUTION 2014-04 AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO 
EXECUTE A RESOLUTION WITH JERSEY SHORE STATE BANK, VOYA FINANCIAL ADVISORS, 
AND PERSHING, LLC DESIGNATING THE AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES ON THE TOWSNHIP’S 
VARIOUS BANK ACCOUNTS.  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by authority of the Township of Ferguson, Centre County, Pennsylvania, and it is 
hereby resolved by authority of the same, that Peter Buckland, Chairman; Steve Miller, Vice Chairman; 
and David Pribulka, Township Manager of Ferguson Township be authorized to sign checks or drafts 
for the accounts of Ferguson Township; open, close, and transact investment accounts; sign 
documents for actions to be executed; and, further that the Chairman and Secretary be authorized to 
sign this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signatures of two of the three designated signatories shall be 
required on any document in order to transact business. 
 
RESOLVED, this 19th day of February, 2019. 
 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 
 
       By:       
             Peter Buckland, Chairman 
             Board of Supervisors  
 
[ S E A  L ] 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:      
       David Pribulka, Secretary 

 
 

 
 

I, David G. Pribulka, Secretary of the Township of Ferguson, Centre County, Pennsylvania, hereby 
certify that Ferguson Township is duly and legally organized and existing and that the quorum of the 
Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township, at a meeting duly held on the 19th day of February, 2019, 
which is in full force and effect on this date and does not conflict with the Home Rule Charter of 
Ferguson Township. 
 
I further certify that I have the authority to execute this Non-Corporate Resolution on behalf of Ferguson 
Township, and that the Board of Supervisors of Ferguson Township that took action called for by the 
resolutions annexed hereto has the power to take such action. 
 
 
_____________________________      _____________________________ ___________ 
David Pribulka, Secretary       Signature     Date 







FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

Page 1 of 4 

Source:  Eric Endresen, Director of Finance 

Policy Number: Effective Date: 2005 

Policy Name: Purchasing Policy Last Revision Date: 20195 

Classification Group: Accounting Sub Classification Group Purchasing 

SCOPE & PURPOSE 
To provide guidance and control of purchasing for the staff of Ferguson Township. 

Levels of Authority and Responsibility. 

• Board of Supervisors – Approval required for purchases over $3,000

• Township Manager - Purchases up to the amount the board authorizes can be made by the
Township Manager.  Purchases up to $ 2,999.99 per item can be authorized by the Township 
Manager.  Purchases above this amount require Board authorization. 

• Department Manager – Purchases up to $2,4999.99 per item can be authorized by the
Department Manager. 

• Individual Employee All purchases by individual employees must be approved by the
Department Manager in advance. 

Home Rule Limits 
The Township is a home rule entity.  As such, quotes and bidding limits are determined in accordance 
with the home rule criteria as stated in ordinance Number 918, dated March 2, 2009. 

Davis Bacon Act 
When using Federal money for construction projects, wage rates and record-keeping procedures 
established by the Davis-Bacon Act must be followed. 

Prevailing Wage Act 
For public works projects in excess of specific amount are subject to the Pennsylvania Prevailing 
Wage Act requires specifications to contain a provision for the payment of the prevailing minimum 
wage to all workers on the project.  

Motor Vehicles 
Under the Motor Vehicle Procurement Act, public bodies, including municipalities, are required to 
purchase or lease only motor vehicles manufactured or assembled in North America. 

Exemptions 
Some items greater than or equal to $25,000 are explicitly exempted from the competitive bidding 
process.  They include: 

• Maintenance, Repairs or replacements for water, electric, or other public works.

• Work performed by municipal employees

• Where items are specific and patented or copyrighted.

Redlined  changes 



FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

Page 2 of 4 

• Insurance

• Intergovernmental contracts

• Personal or Professional Services

• Real Estate

• Emergency purchases

These items under $25,000 may are not be subject to a formal Purchase Order.  They still require 
Manager and Board of Supervisor approval and budgeted authority however.  

State Contracts 
Any item listed on the PA State Contract list may be purchased without formal bid procedure normally 
required.  This is because the State has already done the bidding process.  COSTARS is a similar 
state program that allows local purchases to piggyback. 

The Local Piggyback Purchasing Program (L3P) is a second option available to eligible organizations 
through an annual subscription with the PA Municipal League. 

The Commonwealths procurement statue provides for a sweeping authority for local government to 
engage in cooperative purchasing.  Local government may enter into a cooperative purchasing 
agreement with another Pennsylvania public procurement entity or external procurement unit. 

Bidding Requirements 

• All bids requests must be advertised in advance, typically in the local newspaper of general
circulation and include certain information such as date, time and local of bid opening.  
Township officials are subject to a penalty for evading the advertising requirements of 10% of 
the full amount of the contract and a misdemeanor of the third degree. 

• All contracts or purchases in excess of $25,000 unless exempted, must be made from the
lowest responsible bidder.  Piece-mealing purchases are also subject to this penalty. 

• The award of contracts must only be made by public announcement at the meeting at which
the bids are received or at a subsequent meeting, the time and place of which must be 
publicly announced when the bids are received or published with 5 days notice for Boroughs 
or Townships of the second class. 

• The Municipality can reject any or all bids with good reason.

Leases 
Leases qualify as contracts under this policy and require the same authorization as other purchases.  
However, State purchasing regulations generally do not apply with the exception of lease-purchases. 

Fraud and Conflicts of Interest 

• No public official or public employee can enter into a contract valued at $500 or more with their
government body unless the contract is awarded through a public process. 

• Any public official or employee with a personal interest cannot have any supervisory
responsibility for administering the contract. 

• To fall within the prohibition, the interest of an official must be certain, pecuniary, or proprietary
and direct.  Sentimental or general interest is not enough. 

Kickbacks, Gifts, Gratuities, Personal Purchases 



FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

Page 3 of 4 

Township employees may not accept money, goods or services from vendors, including kickbacks or 
rebates, in exchange for any form of commitment, promise or favor related to that vendor or the 
vendor’s related parties.  In addition, any money, goods or services in excess of a de minimis amount 
is considered Township property and will be treated as such. 

Employees may not use Township funds or other property for personal use unless specifically 
authorized by the Township Manager or Board of Supervisors. 

Purchases and Budgets 
Purchases will only be allowed in accordance with the approved budgets or by special authorization 
by the Board of Supervisors or Township Manager.  Without proper purchasing authority, purchases 
cannot be made.  This is also true with the timing of purchases.  Purchases can only be made within 
the time scope of the approved budget.  Items not purchased within the budget time line maywill have 
an encumbrance reserved for that item only with the Township Managers and the Board of 
Supervisors approvalon the condition that the item is expected to be ordered in the near future. 

Approved Vendors 
The Township will maintain a list of Approved Vendors.  Vendors will be approved for use by the 
Accounting Department and verified as valid ongoing independent concerns.  Any company or 
vendors with a conflict of interest to the Township will not be approved.  In most cases, local current 
vendors will be given priority when making purchases.  

Purchasing Cards, Credit Cards and Electronic Paymentsurchases 
The Township makes use of electronic purchases on a regular basis.  The payment methods consist 
mainly of PayPal and PLGIT purchasing cards.  The Township sells old equipment via eBay and 
maintains a small balance in PayPal for routine office supply purchases.  The purchasing cards are 
covered by a separate policy.  Only the Township manager has a credit card with a limit equal to the 
purchasing authorization provided for by this Policy. 

Any paymentsurchases made via the Internet will be in a secured form only.  When a vendor does not 
provide a secured form of paymentservice, the purchase will be made via telephone or some other 
form. 

Requisitions & Purchase Orders 
Generally, all purchases, except reimbursable items, are required to have a Purchase Requisition 
completed and approved prior to making the purchase.  This can be done verbally by the department 
head as long as the requisition is signed within a reasonable time.  Without proper authorization, the 
purchaser is making an unauthorized purchase with Township funds.  Any unauthorized purchases 
may be deemed the personal responsibility of the purchaser. 

All purchases exceeding $2,499.991,000 require a formal Purchase Order signed by the department 
head and Township Manager.  Purchase Orders are generally sent to the vendor to inform them of the 
intent to purchase.  Contract documentation may take the place of a purchase order in certain 
circumstances. 
Purchase requisitions are completed and signed according to authorization needed.  Once approved, 
the items shouldcan be ordered by the department or person completing the requisition.  The 
requisition is then forwarded with supporting documentation to the financeaccounting department toi 
match up with the invoices. 



FERGUSON TOWNSHIP 
ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

Page 4 of 4 

No purchases will be made that conflict with Township Policies or conflict with the independence of 
the Township and its employees or any employee directly involved with the purchases and the 
interests of the Vendor. 

The purchase order is laser form created by the software.  A copy is generally sent to the Vendor as 
authorization for the purchase.  A second copy is sent to the Accounting Department.  A third copy is 
provided to the purchaser. 

The Township does not generallymay use blanket purchase orders.  There are a few cases, that 
blanket POs make sense.  In certain circumstances blanket purchase orders streamline the 
purchasing process for commonly purchased items using one vendor.  The Township Manager must 
approve the use of a blanket PO. 

Changes/Cancellations/Credits 
Any changes, cancellations or credits to the purchase will be forwarded to the Accounting department 
as soon as possible.   Any increase in purchases will follow the same guidelines as a new purchase. 

Delivery and Authorization. 
The purchaser is responsible for inspecting and accepting the item upon delivery.  If the item is 
damaged, of the wrong type or amount, this must be noted at delivery time.  Depending on the 
severity of this, the delivery can be rejected or not authorized.  If rejected, redelivery should be 
scheduled and the Accounting department notified. 

A key piece of information is the packing slips that come with the items.  Almost all items delivered will 
have a packing slip attached.  This packing slip will be forwarded to the Accountant for processing in a 
timely manner.  If no packing slip is available, please notify the accounting department verbally or in 
writing that the items were received and accepted.  Without notice of receiving the item, the payment 
to the vendor will be delayed. 



1

Pribulka,David

From: Todd Giddings <toddgiddings@verizon.net>
Sent: Tuesday, January 29, 2019 11:29 AM
To: Buckland,Peter
Cc: Pribulka,David
Subject: National Groundwater Awareness Week March 10 - 16, 2019
Attachments: Ground Water Awareness Week Proclamation Ferguson Township.docx

Hi Peter, 

To you and the Board of Supervisors:  Congratulations on the Source Water Protection Ordinance. 

During the Citizen’s Comments section of the February 19 Board of Supervisors’ meeting, I would like 
to ask the Board to consider and then make the attached Proclamation.  If approved, the 
Proclamation could appear on the Township’s Web site.  I will have a PowerPoint slide of the 
Proclamation so that it could appear on the CNet video of the meeting.  This proclamation would be a 
small step in the education program for the Source-Water Protection Ordinance. 

Thank you for considering my request, 
Todd 

Citizen's Right to Be Heard Request - February 19, 2019



Groundwater Awareness Week Proclamation 
 
WHEREAS, groundwater, the subsurface water that fills cracks and solution openings in the 
bedrock, is a valuable natural resource, making up about 90 percent of the world's fresh water, 
excluding polar ice caps; and 

 
WHEREAS, groundwater is a renewable resource that is replenished naturally by precipitation; and 

 
WHEREAS, the residents in Ferguson Township use more than 1 million gallons of groundwater 
each day; and  

 
WHEREAS, the residents and businesses in Ferguson Township are almost 100% dependent on 
groundwater for their drinking-water supply; and 

 
WHEREAS, public and private water wells tapping groundwater resources often can provide the 
highest quality water available to homeowners and businesses; and 

 
WHEREAS, groundwater comprises more than 85% of the water flowing in Slab Cabin Run and its 
tributaries each year, thereby providing an outstanding aquatic habitat; and 

 
WHEREAS, groundwater is the most extracted natural resource in Ferguson Township, and 
 
WHEREAS, the groundwater that is source water in Ferguson Township is now protected by the 
recently-adopted Source-Water Protection Ordinance, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the week of March 10 through 16, 2019 is                          
hereby designated Groundwater Awareness Week in the Township of Ferguson in conjunction 
with the celebration of National Groundwater Awareness Week.  

                          

 

PROCLAIMED this 19th day of February, 2019. 

 

Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors, 

 

 
_________________________________ 
Peter Buckland, Chairman 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.____________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON, CENTRE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA AMENDING THE 2018 FERGUSON TOWNSHIP OPERATING 
BUDGET BY INCREASING EXPENDITURES AS DESCRIBED. 
 

WHEREAS, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors adopted the 2018 
Township Operating Budget on December 11, 2017, projecting revenues and 
expenditures for the 2018 fiscal year; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 7.08 of the Ferguson Township Home Rule Charter provides 
for amendment of the Township Operating Budget after adoption; and  
 

WHEREAS·, the Board of Supervisors declared an amendment of the budget on 
February 19, 2019 and notice of the public hearing was duly and properly advertised. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors amends the 
2018 Township Budget as follows: 
 

Fund/Account Description 
Original 
Budget Change 

Revised 
Budget 

03.448.363 Hydrant 
Service 

$35,500 $5,000 $40,500 

To adjust the Hydrant Fund budget to remain in compliance with fund level 
budgetary authority. 

 
 

RESOLVED this 4th day of March, 2019. 
 
 

       TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 
 

      ________________________ 
         By:   Peter Buckland, Chairman 

         Board of Supervisors  
 
 
 
 

[ S E A L ] 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
David G. Pribulka, Secretary 



THE PENNSYLVANIA C-PACE PROGRAM 

A NEW TOOL FOR LOCAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT IN PENNSYLVANIA 

• In June 2018, Gov. Tom Wolf signed SB 234 into law, adding Pennsylvania to the 33 states who have enabled
Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy, or C-PACE.

• C-PACE is a tool for local governments to help promote local investment, create clean energy jobs, and meet
sustainability goals through energy efficiency and clean energy projects.

• C-PACE provides 100% up-front private capital for clean energy and energy efficiency projects on commercial
properties. Improvements are repaid through a long-term surcharge on the property tax bill that transfers with
sale of the property.

BENEFITS OF C-PACE 

• C-PACE helps local Pennsylvania businesses save money, creates local jobs, reduces pollution from energy use,
and spurs local investment in commercial properties.

• Pennsylvania already has over 86,000 jobs in clean energy and energy efficiency. C-PACE will help grow this
number by developing new projects and driving new investment.

• C-PACE has leveraged over $712 million in clean energy and energy efficiency projects to date. Many experts
expect to see C-PACE investment top $1 billion by the end of 2018.

THE PENNSYLVANIA C-PACE PROGRAM 

• The state has no formal role in the implementation of C-PACE, but that does not mean local governments are on
their own. The Pennsylvania C-PACE Program, administered statewide by the Sustainable Energy Fund (SEF), and
by the Philadelphia Energy Authority (PEA) in Philadelphia will be a turnkey program for county governments to
establish C-PACE locally at no cost.

• The Pennsylvania C-PACE Program is currently under development through a collaboration with a broad-ranging
stakeholder group, including representatives from local governments, state agencies, tax experts, capital
providers, contractors, state agencies, environmental groups, labor organizations, and more.

• When completed in January 2019, the program will include all the tools a county government needs to get started,
including specific program guidelines and eligibility requirements, as well as sample contracts for capital
providers, contractors, and property owners.

THE ROLE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENTS 

• In order to establish the Pennsylvania C-PACE Program locally, county governments must pass a resolution. A
model resolution will be available in January 2019, and is being developed in consultation with local tax attorneys
and C-PACE financing experts.

• Once the Pennsylvania C-PACE Program is established locally, the main responsibility of the county government
is to collect C-PACE assessments through the existing property tax collection process, and to remit payment
back to the C-PACE capital provider via the program administrator. Instructions for this process will be included
in the model ordinance.

• Optionally, counties and municipalities may support a local C-PACE program, once established, through public
awareness and training for property owners, developers, local financial institutions, and contractors.

Visit www.PennsylvaniaCPACE.org for more information





State College, PA 16801
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3088

COG Forum Room
Tuesday, February 5, 2019

8:30 AM

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Harden will convene the meeting.

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda (five 
minute per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda should 
be deferred until that point in the meeting.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A copy of the minutes of the January 9, 2019 Ad Hoc Facilities Committee meeting is enclosed.

4. PRESENTATION FROM ILONA BALLREICH

The Committee should receive a presentation from Ms. Ilona Ballreich, program manager for the 
Sustainable Communities Collaborative, and assess its interest in exploring a partnership 
between the COG with Penn State University.

At its January meeting, the Ad Hoc Facilities Committee expressed an interest in receiving a 
presentation from Ms. Ballreich at its February meeting.  This presentation will explore the 
potential for COG to partner with the Facility Management Institute and/or the Department of 
Architectural Engineering at Penn State through the Sustainability Communities Collaborative 
for its facilities management purpose.

After receiving the presentation, the Committee should ask questions and perhaps request 
additional information from Ms. Ballreich to further the discussion to determine if there is 
potential for a joint project and, if so, then how that project could be structured to ensure it will 
be successful for University and the COG.



Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Agenda
February 5, 2019
Page 2 of 4

5. OWNERSHIP AND COG BUILDING LEASE TERMS

At it January Meeting the Committee requested an update of the ownership of the COG 
Building, including the property it is situated on.  Key points include:

Land is owned by the Centre Region COG.
Building is owned by the municipalities and leased to the COG for 25 years, until 2028.
The total project cost of the building is $2.5 million.
The annual rent for the COG Building is approximately $185,000 a year for 
approximately 15,800 sq feet of lease space. The total value of the rent over 25 years is 
$4,625,000.
Rent is not paid equally to the municipalities but rather it is based on the percentage of 
the building they purchased in 2003. In application the ownership percentages are the 
2003 municipal share as identified in the COG Budget. 
The lease was recorded as a capital lease as the net present value of the lease payments 
exceeded 90% of the cost of the improvements.
After 25 years, the lease is silent as to what should occur.  There is no bargain purchase 
option, there is not a option to extend the lease. The elected officials in office in 2003 
felt that elected officials who will be in office in 2028 would be in a better position than 
they were in identifying how the building should be used after 2028.
Improvements and repairs to the building have all been paid through the annual COG 
budgets
Staff feels the input received from the COG Building Space Evaluation (agenda item #6) 
and the COG Building Evaluation (as budgeted for in 2019) should help define the 
decision making process surrounding the current and future lease agreements.

The Committee should receive the historical information about the COG Building and
ask questions/comment.

6. REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – COG BUILDING SPACE EVALUATION

The Committee should decide whether to authorize a request for proposal (RFP) for a space 
evaluation to be performed at the COG Building.

At its December meeting, Mr. Jim Steff introduced a draft RFP for a space evaluation of the 
COG Building.  Since that time the enclosed RFP has been updated.  Mr. Steff will outline the 
document for the Committee members who should ask questions and recommend edits to the 
document.

The Committee should:

a. Review the document and note areas of concern.



Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Agenda
February 5, 2019
Page 3 of 4

b. Decide whether to refer the document, and possibility an amendment to the Centre 
Region Code Administration Budget to the General Forum for consideration. Mr. Steff 
will present a cost estimate for the project. It is likely to be under the COG’s public 
bidding threshold of $20,600.

c. Provide COG staff with guidance on the process for issuing the RFP. Because it a bid for 
professional services and is under the bidding threshold there are several options:

1) Advertise the RFP in the Centre Daily Times and solicit competitive bids.

2) Distribute the RFP to four local architects that the COG has worked with 
successfully in the past (this is the staff’s preferred option).

d. Provide the COG staff with guidance as to the bid review and award process. For 
instance, does the Committee want to met with some or all of the firms that have 
submitted proposals, and if the bid is below the public bidding threshold and funds are 
designed by the General Forum then the bid may be awarded by the Committee or the 
Executive Director. 

7. – CHAPTER 2

direction for the Committee.  Specifically the questions are:

Is there a facilities maintenance plan?
Is the facilities maintenance plan a component of overall organizational planning?
Does the facilities maintenance plan include long and short term objectives, budgets, and 
timelines?
Have potential stakeholders in the facilities maintenance planning process been identified?

The Committee members should discuss each question, placing a value on its importance to the 
plan on how COG should maintain its facilities.  From there the Committee should decide if 
and who the person assigned to the task should be and whether or not it has been accomplished 
already.  If the task has not been accomplished, the Committee members should discuss and 
define parameters they deem important for the person assigned to follow in accomplishing the 
task.

This agenda item is for discussion only and does not require Committee action.



Ad Hoc Facilities Committee Agenda
February 5, 2019
Page 4 of 4

8. FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Mr. Francke should report any input received from the Finance Committee at its January 10, 
2019 meeting.

9. MARCH MEETING DATE

Due to a planned vacation for staff, staff is requesting to delay the March meeting date one week 
from March 5, 2019 at 8:30 am to March 12, 2019 at 8:30 am.

The Facilities Committee should review this change and decide accordingly based on their 
availability.

10. OTHER BUSINESS

A. Matter of Record – Staff has reached out to John Franek about aiding the COG 
Facilities Committee in the development of a vision statement for the Committee.  
Discussions are still in the early stages.

10. ADJOURNMENT



CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 

State College, PA  16801 
Phone:  (814) 231- -

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
COG Forum Room 
2643 Gateway Drive 

Wednesday, February 6, 2019 
12:15 PM 

AGENDA 
1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Nigel Wilson will convene the meeting.

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda
(five minutes per person time limit, please).  Comments relating to specific items on the
agenda should be deferred until that point in the meeting.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A copy of the minutes from the January 9, 2019 Human Resources Committee meeting is
enclosed for approval.

4. COMMITTEE PICTURES

COG Staff would like to take a picture of Committee members to include on our webpage
that discusses the Human Resources Committee. COG believes it would add a personal
touch and help residents identify their elected officials when needing to reach out to them.

5. OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATION – JOB DESCRIPTION (EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR)

As discussed at the January 9 HR Committee meeting, the COG Resolution 87-6, signed
in August 1987, upgraded the position of the Director of Administration to that of the
Executive Director of the Centre Region Council of Governments.  The resolution
outlines the powers and duties of the position, as well as an employment agreement that
was approved by the General Forum in September 2004 between the Executive Director
and the Centre Region Council of Governments.  In addition, the position is described in
the 2008 COG Articles of Agreement.  However, the position of Executive Director does
not have an official job description.



Human Resources Committee Agenda 
February 6, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 

Enclosed please find the second draft copy of the job description for the Executive Director 
position.  The job description has been revised to include some of the changes as discussed 
at the January 9 HR Committee meeting, including a section detailing the important 
intrapersonal skills that the Committee desires any incoming candidate to possess.   
 
The Committee should review and provide further comment on the job description.  Once 
the document is finalized, it will be shared as a Matter of Record with the General Forum.  
This will give all municipal and elected officials the opportunity to proactively consider the 
recruitment process for the next COG Executive Director when the time comes.  If there 
are no changes to the job description, the Committee should consider the following 
motion: 
 

““That the COG Human Resources Committee approved the job 
description for the COG Executive Director, dated February 6, 2019, and 
its assignment to Pay Grade E91.” 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES 

 
Similar to the Meeting Etiquette Guidelines that were reviewed by the HR Committee and 
adopted by the General Forum in 2018, the General Forum has asked that the HR 
Committee develop and review guidelines for public comments received during COG 
related meetings. 
 
Enclosed please find draft guidelines for public comments and pointers for conducting a 
successful meeting.  The preliminary draft is to elicit the Committee’s thoughts on public 
comment procedures.  All input is encouraged and welcomed, and as the Committee 
reviews the draft document, staff asks them to also consider how to develop the following 
processes: 
 

Should the current procedure for calling on a speaker remain in place, should the 
speaker use a sign in sheet, or should the COG staff make index cards available for 
the speaker to fill out and hand in prior to the start of the meeting? 

 
Do different rules apply to speakers who talk during the public comment period 
versus on a particular agenda topic?  

 
The Committee should review the draft document and decide how to proceed.  Similar to 
the Meeting Etiquette Guidelines that were developed, the HR Committee may 
recommend that the Guidelines be adopted by a resolution of the General Forum. When 
the guidelines are ready for referral to the General Forum the Committee should identify a 
motion to forward onto the General Forum.    
 
 
 



Human Resources Committee Agenda 
February 6, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

7. PERSONNEL POLICY HANDBOOK UPDATE 
 

The draft Personnel Policy Handbook was reviewed and discussed by the HR Committee 
at their December 2018 and January 2019 meetings.  Following a lengthy discussion at the 
January 9, 2019, HR Committee meeting regarding the draft Ethics/Code of Conduct 
policy, specifically the section pertaining to elections, the HR Committee decided the 
section should be revised and a motion was made that the draft COG Personnel Policy 
Handbook go on for legal review, as amended.
 
The COG has a membership to Public Employer Labor Relations Advisory Service 
(PELRAS), and through PELRAS has been assigned to work with labor attorneys at a 
discounted rate.  COG works with a firm out of Pittsburg, PA, Campbell Durrant Beatty 
Palumbo & Miller.  The draft Handbook was forwarded on to the firm for review.   
 
Following a preliminary review, the attorney said the policies seem to be well thought out, 
well written and in good order.  They expected the official review to be completed by the 
first week in February and the attorney will allow some time to speak with the HR Officer 
any items that may warrant edits and/or further discussions. 
 
This agenda item is for informational purposes only. 
 

8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Matter of Record – The full time Parks Maintenance Staff Assistant position is 

being reclassified effective April 1, 2019, to a Parks Caretaker I position to more 
accurately reflect the duties being performed in the position.  This change does not 
have any budgetary implications.  

B. Matter of Record – Schlow will hire a part time Philanthropy Assistant as discussed 
during the 2019 budget process, however, all costs associated with the position will 
be fully reimbursed by the Library Foundation.  

C. Matter of Record – The following is status report on various vacant positions in the 
COG. 

Code – Code Services Manager:  Advertising closed on December 3, 2018 and 68 
applications were received.  Management staff have reviewed the applications, 
selected an interview committee and have begun to discuss the competitive 
interview process.  Once availability of the interview committee has been 
established, interviews will be scheduled. 

Code – Commercial Plans Examiner/Building Inspector (SEOs 2): First round 
interviews were recently held, and recommendations have been made to the Agency 
Director for second round interviews.   



Human Resources Committee Agenda 
February 6, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 

Code – Electrical Inspector:  First round interviews were recently held, and 
recommendations have been made to the Agency Director for second round 
interviews.   

Code – Staff Assistant:  First round interviews are currently being held. 

Planning – Senior Planner:  The CRPA has five interviews scheduled for Thursday, 
January 31, 2019.  The CRPA staff is currently covering most work for the vacant 
Senior Planner position for Halfmoon Township, College Township and Regional 
Planning. 

Planning – Sustainability Planner: Vacant following an abnormally high staff 
turnover in CRPA, the position will be advertised and filled in the future.  In the 
interim, the CRPA Director and other CRPA staff have coordinated a written 
turnover plan documenting the work completed to date, contacts, file locations, 
and other materials necessary to transition the work to a new employee. 
 
Planning – Office Manager:  Following the interview process an offer was made and 
accepted by Marcella Bell.  Marcella previously worked as a part-time Staff Assistant 
in CRPA and left for full-time employment with Ferguson Township. She was a 
great addition to the COG team and we look forward to working with her again.  
Marcella’s start date will be February 18, 2019. 
 
Parks – Caretaker I:  Two fulltime positions were approved in the 2019 budget 
process.  Proposed to start in March and April of 2019.  Staff are currently 
reviewing applications and planning an interview schedule.   

Parks – Staff Assistant:  Vacant.  Staff are currently reviewing applications and 
planning an interview schedule. 

Parks – Staff Assistant Millbrook Marsh:  Vacant.  Staff are currently advertising, 
and recruitment ends February 1, 2019. 

9. ADJOURNMENT



CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #3 

State College, PA  16801 
Phone:  (814) 231-3077    Fax:  (814) 231-3088    Website: www.crcog.net 

 
 

JOINT MEETING 
PUBLIC SERVICES & ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
COG Building – Forum Room 

2643 Gateway Drive  
February 7, 2019 

12:15 PM 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairmen Graham, COG Finance Committee, & Hameister, COG Public Services and 
Environmental Committee, will convene the meeting and introduce the participants. 
 

2. CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda 
(five minutes per person time limit please). Comments relating to specific items on the 
agenda should be deferred to that point in the meeting. 

 
3. JOINT SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT – presented by Peter Buckland 
 

Recently, the Pennsylvania State University entered into a long-term contract with PRX 
Energy to provide consulting services related to the purchase of electrical power generated 
by solar panels. The University’s goals were to reduce costs, enhance environmental 
sustainability, and minimize price fluctuations. Municipal officials familiar with the 
University’s action thought that this purchasing model may be applicable to the public 
entities in the Centre Region that are interested in achieving the same ends. 
 
This item asks the committees to discuss and determine a course of action on a potential 
joint solar power purchase agreement to potentially include the Centre Region 
municipalities, SCBWA, and SCASD.  CATA and UAJA were also invited to participate, 
and recently the Centre County Refuse and Recycling Authority has been contacted as 
well.  Currently each entity has its own separate electricity contract, but there is a desire 
(among some of the elected officials/board members in the Centre Region) to investigate if 
moving towards a cooperative agreement might be financially beneficial while encouraging 
environmental sustainability for all the parties.  
 
 



Joint Public Services & Environmental and Finance Committee Meeting Agenda 
February 7, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Mr. Buckland will introduce the idea of a joint solar power purchase agreement outlining 
the interested parties, the benefits associated with such an agreement, the steps needed to 
be taken, the associated challenges, and the timeline for implementation. 
 
At the January 28, 2019 Centre Region Finance Officers (CRFO) meeting, representatives 
from PRX Energy gave the enclosed presentation and discussed the benefits of a large-scale 
joint solar purchase power agreement.  Also enclosed is the usage of electricity by entity.  
The attendees of the meeting felt a logical next step would be a similar educational 
presentation to the Finance and Public Services and Environmental Committees for the 
elected officials.   
 
The Centre Region Finance Officers will be in attendance to provide insight and answer 
questions of the elected officials. 
 
Possible questions/decision points for the committees are: 
 

1) Do you think this energy purchasing concept should continue to be 
investigated? 

2) If so, then what is the best way of obtaining municipal and General Forum 
“buy in” to explore this concept in more detail? For instance, are the committee 
members willing to discuss the idea with their municipal boards/councils or is 
there another process that should be followed to identify the entities that want 
to pursue this option for purchasing electric power? 

3) Do you have any concerns about or parameters you wish to set related to this 
project? 

4) Who should be the decision makers related to this project?  
a. COG Committee with SCASD and SCBWA participation on this item 
b. Ad Hoc Committee comprised of COG, municipal, SCASD & 

SCBWA officials/employees 
c. Staff managed and lead 
d. Each entity on its own 

5) Is there an interest to place an item on the March Public Services and 
Environmental Committee agenda to authorize a Request for Information 
related to a joint solar power purchase agreement?  To go forward with this 
project, there would likely need to be support from the State College Area 
School District and State College Borough Water Authority due to the need to 
purchase a sufficient quantity of electricity to make this project financially 
feasible for all entities.  
 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT 



CENTRE REGION COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 3 

State College, PA 16801 
Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
COG Building – Forum Room 

2643 Gateway Drive  
February 19, 2019 

12:15 PM 

AGENDA 

1, CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Steve Miller will convene the meeting. 

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS

Members of the public are invited to comment on any items not already on the agenda (five
minutes per person time limit, please). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda should
be deferred until that point in the meeting.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A copy of the minutes of the January 22, 2019 Executive Committee meeting is enclosed.

4. COMMITTEE PICTURES

COG Staff would like to take a picture of Committee members to include on our webpage that
discusses the Executive Committee. COG believes it would add a personal touch and help
residents identify their elected officials when needing to reach out to them.

5. UNIT VOTES AT GENERAL FORUM MEETINGS

This agenda items asks the Executive Committee to discuss and provide comments on questions
from the COG Chair relating to how unit votes occur at the General Forum meetings. The
Chair is asking the Executive Committee to consider action to recommend that the General
Forum charge the Executive Committee with reviewing the current practices for municipal unit
votes and proposing procedures for the future.

Mr. Miller will introduce the topic of municipal units votes as they relate to the Pennsylvania
Sunshine Act that requires agencies to deliberate and take official action on agency business in
an open and public meeting. It requires that meetings have prior notice, and that the public can
attend, participate, and comment before an agency takes official action. A communication was
sent to COG Solicitor Terry Williams asking him for an opinion on this matter.



Executive Committee Agenda 
February 19, 2019 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

As far back as anyone at COG can remember the practice of a unit vote has been used at General 
Forum meetings. It has been done by tradition and there is no documentation to explain or 
approve its use. Essentially, the way the unit vote works is: 

 A unit vote can be called by any General Forum member on any topic. In more current 
days unit votes have been used to ascertain municipal positions on topics requiring a 
unanimous position of the General Forum. By way of example, during the January 28, 
2019 General Forum meeting a unit vote was called to identify whether the 
municipalities supported revisions to the Master Site Plan for Whitehall Road Regional 
Park. As you may recall changes to Master Site Plan must be unanimously approved by 
the five participating municipalities. 

 After a unit vote is called, the COG Chair recesses the General Forum meeting usually 
for five to ten minutes. 

 During that recess each municipality holds a caucus of its governing body. In broad terms 
the General Forum breaks-up in six groups that meet in different parts of the forum 
room. Frequently, the municipal manager joins the caucus. No minutes are taken, the 
caucus gives the members of the governing council/board an informal opportunity to talk 
among themselves and to identify how the municipal vote will be cast.  

 There are no rules governing whether a quorum needs to be present when a unit vote is 
made.  

 When the municipalities are ready, the COG Chair reconvenes the General Forum 
meeting and all the General Forum members return to their seats. 

 The COG Recording Secretary asks each municipality how they vote. 

 The municipal chair/president reports the governing body’s yes or no vote on the 
motion. 

 The Recording Secretary reports the vote to the COG Chair and the Chair announces 
whether motion passed or failed.  

 
In light of several unit votes that have occurred during the last four months, questions have 
arisen as to whether the members of the public can participate in the municipal caucuses or 
whether municipalities should caucus prior to voting and does the unit vote process not fall 
under the Pennsylvania State law. 
 
It should be noted that there is a variation to a unit vote process. This occurs when a General 
Forum meeting is also advertised as a public meeting of the individual boards/councils. This 
happens when funds are borrowed and municipalities act to guarantee a loan, and when the Act 
537 Sewage Facility Plan is amended to extend the sewer service area. For this type of unit vote, 
minutes are recorded and a quorum of the governing body is required to be present.  
 
To proceed Mr. Miller asks the Executive Committee to consider forwarding the following 
motion to the General Forum: 
 
 



Executive Committee Agenda 
February 19, 2019 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

“That the General Forum ask the Executive Committee to review the current practices 
for municipal unit votes that are cast at General Forum meetings including sessions 
that are advertised as meetings of individual municipal boards and councils and 
propose procedures for the future.” 

 
6. JOINT SOLAR POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to either endorse or request that the General 
Forum endorse, the use of COG staff time (primarily the Finance Director with less time 
committed by the Executive Director) to advance a regional discussion regarding the interest of 
exploring in more detail the concept of a joint purchase of solar energy to save funds and 
enhance environmental sustainability.   
 
During the February 7, 2019 Joint Public Services and Environmental and Finance Committee 
meeting the two groups, along with representatives of other local entities, discussed the idea of a 
regional project in which the six Centre Region municipalities, COG, State College Area School 
District and the State College Borough Water Authority would enter into a joint power purchase 
agreement to purchase solar power. The model for this Regional Solar Power Purchase 
Agreement is an agreement recently entered into by Penn State University. Both committees as 
well as the other public entities supported further investigation and information gathering of the 
concept. 
 
At the meeting the Public Services and Environmental and Finance Committees both requested 
that the Executive Committee authorize the COG Administrative offices to dedicate time to aid 
in the setup and initial administration of the project as a 2019 work task. This request was made 
due to the project not being on the 2019 work tasks for the COG Office of Administration.  
Looking ahead, after the Centre Regional Planning Agency is fully staff, its Sustainability Planner 
may have a role in this project as well.  
 
The Executive Committee should discuss whether there is support for the COG to participate in 
this project and should the investment of staff time be authorized. Because this project is so new 
there is not an accurate estimate about the amount of staff time that may be involved. The 
options available to the Committee are: 

A. Deny the request 
B. Approve the request 
C. Refer the request to the General Forum with or without a recommendation 

 
As background information enclosed is a communication that will be sent to the individuals who 
attended the February 7, 2019 meeting and the municipal managers. 
 

7. 2018 YEAR END FIRE ACTIVITY REPORT 
 

This agenda item asks the Executive Committee to schedule an informational presentation at the 
February 25, 2018 COG General Forum meeting about 2018 incident statistics for the Regional 
Fire Protection Program. 



Executive Committee Agenda 
February 19, 2019 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

The presentation will be made by Mr. Steve Bair and will be completed within ten minutes. In 
terms of call volume, during 2018 there were 1,308 incidents, the second highest on record. 
2017 was the busiest year with 1,359 incidents. Included with the report will be a review of the 
program’s mission, standard of care, number and type of calls, program assets, and future major 
issues confronting the COG, the municipalities and the fire service. 
 
The Executive Director is recommending the Executive Committee consider scheduling this 
presentation because during 2019 the Regional Fire Protect Program and related services will be 
a focus of budgetary and policy level discussion and the year-end report provides a description of 
the type of call volume occurring in our community.  
 
The Executive Committee should decide whether to authorize the proposed 2018 Year End Fire 
Activity Report.  

 
8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Mr. Steff will provide an update of COG activities for February 2019 including discussions 
relating to conducting a study of the regional fire protection program in 2020, the status of the 
parks and recreation regional comprehensive plan and a staff proposal to conduct a learning 
session on Robert Rules of Order during an evening session sometime this spring. 
 
Mr. Steff wishes to draw to the Committee’s attention the following links to two articles that 
were published in the February 14, 2019 edition of the Centre Daily Times: 

a. Pennsylvania will fund $670 million Seven Mountains to State College transportation 
project. https://www.centredaily.com/news/local/article226148420.html  

b. Major Development could be headed to Halfmoon Township. 
https://www.centredaily.com/news/local/article226196915.html 

 
If approved, both projects will have a significant impact on the Centre Region municipalities and 
may cause rigorous discussion at the regional level. The Halfmoon Township proposal is to 
extend the regional growth boundary/sewage service area by 985 acres along the 
Halfmoon/Patton Township border. This will require that a Development of Regional Impact 
(DRI) Application be submitted to the Centre Regional Planning Agency and to the COG. To be 
approved DRI applications must be supported by five of the six municipalities including the 
community in which the project is located. If approved by the Halfmoon Township Board of 
Supervisors, this DRI is expected to be submitted during the second quarter of 2019.  
 

9. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Matter of Record – Next month’s meeting of the General Forum is scheduled for March 

25, 2019 at the COG Building. Tentative agenda items include: budget amendments to 
repair the barn roof at the Millbrook Marsh Nature Center. Following Finance 
Committee approval, the Executive Committee may be asked to authorize a budget 
amendment to conduct a space evaluation study of the COG building, and purchase of a 
chemical control monitor for the pool. Both items are expected to cost less than the 



Executive Committee Agenda 
February 19, 2019 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 

COG’s purchasing threshold of $20,600.  In addition, the TLU Committee may request 
the staff present an update. 

B. Matter of Record – The following is an update of the status of planning and evaluation 
studies currently underway at the COG. 

 Planning Activity Status 
1 Update Personnel 

Policy Plan 
A draft is complete and is under legal review. The Human 
Resources Committee may complete its final review at the 
end of the first quarter. The new Plan should be adopted 
by the General Forum during the second quarter. 

2 Parks and 
Recreation 
Regional Plan 

This project is well underway – community meeting held, 
key person interviews almost completed, and a community 
wide randomized survey should be conducted in March. 
This plan should be complete during the fourth quarter. 
$90,000 is included in the 2019 budget for the study and 
survey. 

3 Space Evaluation 
Study of COG 
Building 

A Request for Proposals has been reviewed and has been 
issued by the Ad Hoc Facilities Committee. Proposals are 
due March 11th. Because funding is not included in the 
2019 COG Budget, an amendment to the CRCA budget 
will be necessary. 

4 Study of Regional 
Fire Protection 
Program 

The Public Safety Committee has been asked whether to 
recommend this study to the General Forum and, if so, 
then should a Steering Committee be appointed to guide 
the process. If a study is approved, then a Steering 
Committee will be established and members appointed 
during the second quarter and the RPP completed in the 
third/fourth quarter. Funds for this study will be 
requested in the 2020 Budget. 

5 IT Study COG Staff is working with a consultant, paid on an 
hourly basis, to prepare a Request for Proposals or 
Request for Qualifications. $20,000 is included in the 
2019 budget for this study. 

6 Code Software 
Study 

The Code Director is meeting with a prospective project 
manager who would coordinate the study process. The 
2019 budget includes $40,000 for this first phase of the 
study process. 

7 COG Facilities 
Evaluation 

$50,000 is included in the 2019 budget for this study of 
system (e.g. HVAC systems) and building components  
(e.g. roofs) of all COG facilities (including the fire stations 
and parks and recreation buildings). 

 
 



Executive Committee Agenda 
February 19, 2019 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 

C. Matter of Record – Enclosed is a job description for the position of COG Executive 
Director that the HR Committee approved during its February 6, 2019 meeting. The 
position’s duties are generally described in the COG Articles of Agreement and in a 
resolutions of the General Forum. The Committee believed the time has come to have a 
formal document. 

D. Matter of Record – Enclosed is an article regarding Penn State’s solar panel project in 
Franklin County, PA.  
 

10. TENTATIVE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

The following are agenda items tentatively scheduled for discussion at the February 25, 2019 
General Forum meeting, which will be held in the Centre Region COG Building.  
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Proposed Interim Procedures for Unit Votes 
C. Fire Protection Program 2018 Report 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 















 

  
 

Manager’s Report 
February 19, 2019 

 
1. The Township’s new Ordinance Enforcement Officer, Stacey Mayes, began 

working with the Township. Stacey joins the Township after a career as a 
correctional officer. 
 

2. A meeting of the CBICC’s Municipal Manager Committee was held on February 
13th. Topics discussed included updates on economic development projects, both 
past and present, including Morgan Advanced Materials, KCF Technologies, and 
a new potential growth and expansion project in College Township. A draft rubric 
against which potential economic development projects will be evaluated was also 
reviewed. 
 

3. The Ferguson Township Parks and Recreation Committee met on Monday, 
February 11th. Topics discussed included a continued discussion of 2019 goals for 
the committee and the draft “low mow” map for Fairbrook Park. The Committee will 
review some revisions proposed to the map during their March meeting and it will 
be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval once completed. 
 

4. The Suburban Park Master Plan Steering Committee meeting was cancelled due 
to inclement weather and was rescheduled for February 19th. A verbal update on 
the meeting will be provided.  
 

5. The Finance Director and Township Manager have begun to have discussions with 
Concord Financial about appropriate funding options to finance the Public Works 
Maintenance Facility and the renovations of the administrative office. The Board 
can expect a further update and requested action as design of the Public Works 
Maintenance Facility nears completion.  
 

6. A meeting of the Police Pension Advisory Committee was held on February 1st. 
The portfolio is performing well given unfavorable market conditions in the fourth 
quarter of 2018, and the pension’s investors are confident that the fund’s 
performance will remain strong in 2019. A presentation will be given to the Board 
at an upcoming meeting. 



- A Home Rule Municipality -

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive  •  State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
Telephone: 814-238-4651  •   Fax: 814-238-3454 
www.twp.ferguson.pa.us 

Planning & Zoning Director’s Report 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

The Ferguson Township Planning Commission met on February 11, 2019 and included the 
following discussion  

REGULAR MEETING 

• An Active Plan List is attached for the Board of Supervisors consideration (2/13/19).

• Planning Commission Regular Minutes from the December 4, 2018 and January 28, 2019 meetings 
and the January 28, 2019 Organizational Meeting.

• FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING LAND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The Planning Commission conducted its initial review of the Public Works Building Land Development 
Plan and provided questions and comments to Dave Modricker, Public Works Director related to 
methods of stormwater management and the proposed rain garden, safeguards related to the fueling 
station, access to existing amenities such as the composting area, impact on office space with the 
current Township building, and general comments related to the overall cost of the project.

• ZONING AND SALDO ORDINANCE REVISIONS UPDATE
Carolyn Yagle with Environmental Planning & Design attended and continued discussion from the 
January 28, 2019 Planning Commission meeting to review changes and revisions within the 5th Draft 
of both ordinances.  Ms. Yagle also discussed the format of the Ordinance Open House scheduled for 
February 21, 2019 from 6:00-8:00 p.m. in the Main Meeting Room.

• PINE GROVE MILLS SMALL AREA PLAN
Jim May intends to give the Board of Supervisors an update on the work completed thus far with the 
draft Small Area Plan at a meeting in March, as he also intends to give an update to the Planning 
Commission.  The Steering Committee meeting was cancelled on February 13, 2019 and rescheduled 
for March 13, 2019 at 6:00 p.m.

• CBICC - ABC ESSENTIALS
Lisa Strickland, Planning Commission Chair and the Planning & Zoning Director will be participating in 
the first hour-long discussion as part of a series of presentations designed to explore authorities, 
boards and commissions.  The first of the series is titled “The Future’s Blueprint” to be held on 
Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 5:15 p.m. at the CBICC Offices. 



 
 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
 

3147 Research Drive, State College, Pennsylvania 16801 
 

Telephone: 814-238-4651 Fax: 814-238-3454 
 
 
 
TO:  Ferguson Township Board of Supervisors         
 
FROM:             Lindsay K. Schoch, Community Planner 
             Raymond J. Stolinas, AICP, Planning & Zoning Director 
 
DATE:                February 13, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:          Active Plans in the Township 
 
In an effort to keep the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors up-to-date on current 
developments, staff is providing a list of Active Plans and other Projects in the Township. 
 
Currently, the Township has two (3) Active Plans and one (1) Proposed Concept Plan.  
 
Harner Farm Proposed Concept Plan:  The Planning Commission held a preapplication conference 
with Aspen Whitehall Partners, LLC, Aspen Route 26 Partners, LLC, Penn Terra Engineers, and 
representatives from Sheetz on Tuesday, December 4, 2018.  The proposal is for approximately 27 
acres encompassing the southeastern portion of the Harner Farm. The developer is proposing a 
6,077 square foot Sheetz convenience store, a multi-use building with retail on the first floor and 
apartments on the second floor, and a 36 lot residential subdivision.  The Planning Commission had 
the opportunity to make comments and ask questions but did not have major concerns about the 
project as it is proposed in the Concept Plan.  A Traffic Scoping Meeting was held on December 19, 
2018 at which time the Township Engineer, Consulting Traffic Engineer and Community Planner 
met with PennDOT, PennTerra, Wooster Engineers, and Aspen Route 26 Partners to discuss the 
scoping application. The scoping application has been amended and resubmitted for signatures. 
The scoping application must be approved and signed prior to the Traffic Impact Study being 
conducted. The Concept Plan was presented to the Board of Supervisors on January 21, 2019, at 
which time the Board was able to give comments and feedback on the proposed Plan. The Planning 
and Zoning Director prepared a letter to Justin Mandel, giving an overview of the input from both 
the Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors. Staff met with Penn Terra and 
representatives from Sheetz on January 30 to discuss the proposed Plans and ordinance 
requirements and look forward to the submission of a subdivision plan, then land development 
plan. 
 
King Wealth Strategies Land Development Plan: This Plan, submitted on June 26, 2018 by Penn 
Terra Engineering, Inc. on behalf of the owners/applicants, Laura and Thomas King, is proposing a 
conversion of the existing residential rental property located at 222 Blue Course Drive to their 
financial planning business office.  Tax Parcel 24-12-12 contains .369 acres and is zoned General 
Commercial and lies within the Corridor Overlay.  The existing building is 2,800 square feet with 
1,400 on both the first floor and the basement. Prior to the submission of the plan, five (5) 
variances were approved by the Zoning Hearing Board. They are as follows: Reduction of the 
required parking spaces by 2 spaces; Reduction of the 50’ front parking setback by 34’; Reduction 
of the 15’ flexible buffer yard by 7.5’; Reduction of the 75’ required minimum distance between 
driveway entrances by 15’; and Reduction of the 18’ required parking stall length by 2’. The Planning 
Commission made its initial review and comment on the Plan at its July 9, 2018 meeting. The 
applicant is requesting a variance and two appeals. The Variance (granted) for relief from Section 



27-206, Yard Requirements and the Appeals (withdrawn) for the interpretation of Section 27-206 
and Chapter 26, Stormwater. The Plan was resubmitted to staff for review along with a request for 
consideration of a modification from Chapter 22, Subdivision and Land Development.  The request 
for modification is relief from Chapter 22, Part 5, Section 22-510.2.C Grading, which states: “in all 
cases, the bottom of the excavations or fills shall be a minimum of five feet from the property line 
of developed lots. The Request for Modification is on the January 21, 2019 Board Agenda for 
Consideration. Plan Expiration: April 2, 2019. The applicant requested the request for modification 
be tabled until further notice.  
 
Pine Hall Traditional Town Development General Master Plan: On February 21, 2018 Residential 
Housing Development, LLC submitted a General Master Plan for the Pine Hall TTD. A Master Plan 
currently exists for Pine Hall, but Residential Housing Development, LLC has a different vision, 
therefore is proposing a new General Master Plan.  The Plan was at a stay until decisions were 
made from both the Zoning Hearing Board concerning the validity challenge and the Court of 
Common Pleas concerning the procedural challenge—both decisions have been denied and since, 
appealed by Circleville Partners.   Staff submitted initial plan comments to the developer on Friday, 
March 30, 2018.  The Board of Supervisors reviewed the Plan and made initial comments at its April 
16, 2018 meeting and the Planning Commission reviewed and made initial comments at its April 23, 
2018 meeting. Staff met with the Pine Hall Development Team to discuss initial comments.  A Joint 
Public Work Session with the Board of Supervisors and Planning Commission was held on June 5, 
2018. The Pine Hall Design Team submitted a summary of the meeting to staff. Trans Associates 
submitted the Traffic Impact Study to staff on Monday, July 30, 2018 for review. The General 
Master Plan was formally submitted to staff for review on August 1, 2018, which started the 90-day 
review period for the Board of Supervisors to consider approval of the Plan. The Planning 
Commission reviewed the proposed plan on Monday, August 27, 2018 and had minimal comments 
and some public comment.  Staff has prepared a schedule to move the Plan forward.  The traffic 
study is under review, terms and conditions and agreements are being prepared in preparation for 
a Public Hearing. Circleville Partners appealed the decision of the Zoning Hearing Board (to the 
Court of Common Pleas) and the Court of Common Pleas decision (to the Commonwealth Court). 
Plan review comments were submitted to the developer on September 19, 2018. Staff had a 
meeting with the Design Team on October 2, 2018 to discuss the various agreements, terms and 
conditions, and other items. On October 30, 2018, the plan was resubmitted to staff, reviewed, and 
comment letter was sent to the developer and their team on November 14, 2018. The traffic impact 
study is still in discussions and the developer’s transportation engineer is reviewing township 
comments. Traffic Impact Study is still undergoing review and staff is working on the agreements 
that go along with the plan. Updated Plans were submitted to staff, and the response letter was 
sent to reviewers.  At this time, the majority of the comments are addressed. Plan Expiration is April 
8, 2019.  Staff has also forwarded comments to the applicant regarding the Workforce Housing 
Agreement and continue to work towards Terms and Conditions. 
 
Ferguson Township Public Works Building Land Development Plan: Keller Engineers, Inc. 
submitted plans, on behalf of the Ferguson Township Public Works Department, on February 7, 
2019. The new facility will encompass approximately 13,000 ft.2   that will house offices, vehicle 
repair bays and vehicle fueling island with canopy. Also included with the proposed plans are 

paved parking and truck court, sidewalks, an employee patio and landscaping. New utility 
connections and stormwater management facilities with also be furnished with the new 
building. Access will be from the upper existing driveway off Research Drive. Stormwater will 
be handled through several existing swales and detention basins that will be enhanced by 
meadow and additional landscaping. Plans have been sent out for further review and are due 
back by February 22, 2019. Planning Commission comments will be incorporated into the overall 
review. 
 





























FERGUSON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, JANUARY 28, 2019 

I. ATTENDANCE

6:00 PM 

The Planning Commission held its organizational meeting on Monday, January 28, 2019 at
the Ferguson Township Municipal Building. In attendance were:

Commission: 
Lisa Strickland, Chairperson 
Bill Keough, Vice-Chairperson 
Rob Crassweller, Secretary, absent 
Erik Scott 
Ralph Wheland 
Jeremie Thompson 
Jerry Binney 
Shannon Holliday, Alternate 

Staff: 
Ray Stolinas, Planning & Zoning Director 
Lindsay Schoch, Community Planner 
Jeff Ressler, Zoning Officer 

Others in attendance included: Marcella Bell, Recording Secretary; Jacqueline Ferrell, 
PSU Student; Sierra Conelius, PSU Student; Briana Losco, PSU Student; Elizabeth 
Barber, PSU Student; and Jacob McAndrew, PSU Student 

II. CALL TO ORDER
Ms. Strickland called the Monday, January 28, 2019 Ferguson Township Planning
Commission Organizational meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

Ill. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION OF NEW MEMBERS 
On January 7, 2019, the Board of Supervisors appointed Jerry Binney as a core member of 
the Planning Commission. 

IV. ELECTION OF OFFICERS
Mr. Stolinas requested nominations for 2019 Chairperson. A motion was made by Mr.
Wheland and seconded by Mr. Thompson to retain Ms. Strickland as Chairperson, Mr.
Keough as Vice-Chairperson, and Mr. Crassweller as secretary for 2019. The motion carried
6-0.

V. ESTABLISH MEETING DATES
Ms. Strickland discussed the meeting dates for 2019. Mr. Stolinas stated the May 28 meeting
will be held on a Tuesday due to observance of Memorial Day on Monday, May 27. Only
one meeting has been tentatively scheduled in November due to the Thanksgiving holiday
and hunting season. The December meeting date is tentatively scheduled for the first
Tuesday of the month (December 3) because the Board of Supervisors generally schedule
its last meetings of the year for the first and second Monday (December 2 & 9).

A motion was made by Mr. Keough and seconded by Mr. Wheland to approve the 2019 
Planning Commission meeting dates as presented. The motion carried 6-0. 

VI. SELECTION OF THE CENTRE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (CRPC)
REPRESENTATIVE AND ALTERNATE

A motion was made by Mr. Keough and seconded by Mr. Scott to nominate Jeremie 
Thompson as the representative for the CRPC and to nominate Mr. Wheland as the CRPC 
alternate. The motion carried 6-0. 



Ferguson Township Planning Commission Minutes 
January 28, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

VII. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business for the Planning Commission during the Organizational
meeting, the meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 

Rob Cras weller, Secretary 
For the Planning Commissi

_
on 



N

E

W

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

W

O

R

K

S

 

F

A

C

I

L

I

T

Y

1

0

,

4

5

0

 

S

.

F

.

F

F

E

=

1

2

5

3

.

5

0

S

N

E

W

Date

Drawn By

Checked By

Project Number

GREENFIELD ARCHITECTS, LTD.

These plans are copyrighted and are subject to copyright protection as an

"architectural work" under Section 102 of the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.O. as

amended December 1990 and known as Architectural Copyright Protection

Act of 1990.  The protection includes but is not limited to the overall form

as well as the arrangement  and composition of spaces and elements of

design.  Under such protection, any unauthorized use of these plans, or

work represented, can legally result in the penalties provided.

Any reproduction of this document in part or whole without the express

written permission of Greenfield Architects, Ltd. is strictly prohibited.

No. Description Date

3809-1

H ABCDEFG

6

5

4

3

2

1

H ABCDEFG

6

5

4

3

2

1

BES

 FERGUSON PUBLIC
WORKS BUILDING

FERGUSON TOWNSHIP

3147 RESEARCH DRIVE
STATE COLLEGE, PA 16801

AJL

2/6/19

CIVIL · STRUCTURAL · SURVEY

www.keller-engineers.com

3500 E. College Avenue,Suite 1100

State College, PA 16801

P:(814) 231-2925

C-005

SITE PLAN



 

 

- A Home Rule Municipality - 

 

TOWNSHIP OF FERGUSON 
3147 Research Drive   State College, Pennsylvania 16801 

Telephone: 814-238-4651   Fax: 814-238-3454 

 

 
 

Public Works Director’s Report to the Board of Supervisors 

for the regular meeting on February 19, 2019 

1. Transportation Mobility Study –This study led by McCormick Taylor focuses on identifying 
improvements for walking, biking, driving, and using transit in the areas of N. Atherton St., 
Martin St., Blue Course Dr., Cherry Ln., Clinton Ave., and Aaron Dr. The study group continues 
to meet and review suggested improvement projects including improved intersection lighting, 
bikepath connectivity, transit stop improvements, and pedestrian crossing improvements. The 
second public open house and plans display for this project is planned for 5pm to 6:30pm on 
Monday, March 11, 2019 at the Township Building. A presentation to the Board of Supervisors 
is planned for a regular meeting in April. 

2. LEED Gold Public Works Building – The site plan for this project was presented to the 
Planning Commission on February 11, 2019. The plan should come before the Board of 
Supervisors in March. The architect team is finalizing the building plans and a building permit 
application should be submitted in the next couple weeks. Once the checks are cut, the 
NPDES and E&S permit applications will be submitted to the County and PaDEP for review 
and approval. Staff is finalizing draft policies related to green cleaning, sustainable purchasing, 
and solid waste management for adoption by the Board of Supervisors as part of the LEED 
certification process. This project should be advertised in June for a bid opening on July 30, 
2019. 

3. Stormwater Fee Feasibility Study – The Township entered into a contract with Wood to 
complete phase 2 of this study. A kickoff meeting was held on February 11, 2019. Once a 
project schedule is established after consultation with the Manager, staff will reach out to past 
stormwater advisory committee members and some potential new members to confirm their 
interest in continuing to serve on this committee. 

4. Arborist and Ferguson Township Tree Commission – The FTTC meets on February 25, 
2019. Tree trimming by the Township’s contractor Bartlett Tree Experts is near complete. Tree 
planting by Greene Landscaping will start in April. The arborist has been involved in providing 
information to the Ferguson Township Park and Recreation Committee regarding suggestions 
for plantings in Songbird Sanctuary and Haymarket Park.  

5. Maintenance Section: Maintenance work is weather dependent and includes winter storm 
fighting operations, vehicle maintenance, building maintenance, work orders. 

6. Engineering Section: Engineer staff continues work on the design of 2019 road capital 
projects with support from GIS staff. A partial project list is provided below. 



 

 

 

7. Contract 2017-C1 Kansa Avenue: An open house was held on January 21, 2109. The project 
is currently out to bid for an opening on Tuesday, February 26, 2019. 

8. Contract 2018-C5 Chestnut Ridge Pipe Lining: This contract work is currently being 
performed. 

9. Contract 2018-C20 Park Hills Drainageway Design: This project team led by NTM is 
designing “naturalistic” improvements to this eroded drainageway being sensitive to the mature 
tree canopy, nearby residents, DEP requirements for working in a “stream”, and utility and right 
of way concerns. Design work will proceed through 2019 and generate more accurate 
estimates of projected construction costs. 

10. Contract 2019-C1 Street Improvement Projects (North): This project is in design and 
includes paving and improvements to Appletree Circle, Avebury Circle, Dogwood Circle, Park 
Lane, and Princeton Drive.  

11. Contract 2019-C2 Street Improvement Projects (West): This project is in design and 
includes paving and improvements to West Blade (turn around), Brooklawn Drive, Goddard 
Circle, and Timothy Lane. 

12. Contract 2019-C3 Tadpole Road Base Repair (mill and fill): This includes contract milling 
and paving to repair the roadway from Marengo Road to Gatesburg Road. 

13. Additional projects to be bid this year include: curb and ramp upgrades, fuel contract, 
asphalt and aggregate, signs, pavement markings, microsurfacing, sealcoating, sidewalk 
repairs, traffic signal improvements and LED replacements, and MS4 Chesapeake Bay PRP 
improvements. 






























	.7a Nixon-Kocher Zoning Application 2-1-19.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	20 PZ Directors Report.pdf
	FT Public Works Building LD Plan Set 2-6-19.pdf
	C001 TITLE
	C002 INDEX
	C003 E-S NOTES
	C004 E-S PLAN
	C005 SITE
	C006 GRADING
	C007 UTILITY
	C008 LSCAPE
	C009 PCSM
	C010 PCSM
	C011 LIGHTING
	C012 PROFILES
	C013 DETAILS
	C014 DETAILS
	C015 DETAILS





